
 

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 14 April 2022 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Suite, Civic Centre, Poole BH15 2RU 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Cllr J Beesley 

Vice Chairman: 
Cllr L Williams 

Cllr M F Brooke 
Cllr D Butt 
Cllr M Cox 
 

Cllr L Fear 
Cllr A Filer 
Cllr M Phipps 
 

Cllr Dr F Rice 
 

 

All Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 

 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4851 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact:  on 01202 096660 or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 
 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 6 April 2022 

 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 

 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 

nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 

member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes  

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on 31  March 
2022 (To Follow). 

 

 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 

for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&I

nfo=1&bcr=1 

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 4 clear working days 

before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 

 

 

6.   2020/21 Statements of Accounts Update  

  

Members of the Committee are asked to note the update to the external 
audit of the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021. 
There are currently two issues that are causing delay with the accounts 

which need to be resolved until the accounts can be presented to the 
committee for approval. The two issues are as follows: 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

 
Pension Fund Audit 

The pension fund is administered by Dorset Council who have appointed 

Deloitte as their auditors. Delays with the progress of this audit has meant 
that BCP Council’s pension fund figures cannot be easily verified until a 
letter of assurance is produced from Deloitte.  

Grant Thornton is in regular liaison with Deloitte to settle this matter as 
quicky as possible and the last update was a letter of assurance would be 

issued by the 8th April 2022. Grant Thornton will still need to understand the 
letter of assurance and potentially seek clarification on any pertinent points.  
 
Infrastructure Assets 

Infrastructure assets on the Councils balance sheet include roads, bridges 

and seafront flood protection. A national issue has arisen which is requiring 
appointed auditors, including Grant Thornton to carry out a more detailed 
assessment of this asset class.  

The scale of the problem is not quantifiable, but this is an issue for almost 
all upper tier authorities who have yet to approve their 2020/21 accounts. 

Any upper tier authorities accounts which have been signed off for 2020/21 
already will face the same review as part of their 2021/22 audit.  
 
National Context 

It should be emphasised to the committee that BCP Council is in no way 

alone with the delay to approving the 2020/21 accounts. The latest 
unofficial statistics is that 48% of English local authority accounts were 
signed off at the end of February 2022. This clearly means that majority of 

local authority accounts in England remain unapproved.   
 

7.   Information Governance Update 7 - 44 

 IG update report to the Committee, providing performance management 

information and an update on the current position of the IG Team. 
 

 

8.   Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update 45 - 68 

 This report updates councillors on the position of the council’s Corporate 

Risk Register. The main updates are as follows: 

The following four new risks were added: 

 CR17 – Risk to Reputation of Place & Council if summer 

arrangements are not managed.  

 CR20 – Failure to adequately deliver the ambitions of the climate 

emergency declaration.  

 CR21 – Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Council & 

increase in service requirements. 

 CR22 - Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand.  

 

The following risk was removed: 

 CR1 – Failure to respond to the needs arising from a changing 

demography. 
 

Additional risk updates are provided at paragraph 12-17. 

 

 



 
 

 

9.   Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update (including Audit Charter 

and Audit Plan for 2022/23) 
69 - 114 

 This report sets out the Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan for 2022/23. 
Approval of these documents by the Audit and Governance Committee is a 

requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

The report also details progress made on delivery of the 2021/22 Audit Plan 

for the period January to March (inclusive) 2022. The report highlights that: 

 Thirteen audit assignments have been completed (twelve ‘Reasonable’ 
and one  ‘Partial’ audit opinions); 

 Twenty three audit assignments are in progress; 

 Implementation of audit recommendations is satisfactory; 

 
All recommendations and suggestions arising from a recent CIPFA 

validation of a self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) have been addressed. 
 

 

10.   Forward Plan for the 2022/23 Municipal Year 115 - 118 

 This report sets out the reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance 

Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year in order to enable it to fulfil its 
terms of reference. 

 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 

must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Information Governance Update 

Meeting date  22 April 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  IG update report to the Committee, providing performance 
management information and an update on the current position of 
the IG Team.  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 (a) Committee note the Information Governance (IG) 
performance management information (PMI) for 2021/22 
(Q1 to Q3 – December 2021) contained in this report.   

This includes requests received under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 (FOIA), Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIRs), Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA) and 
other agency disclosure requests.  

(b) Committee note the current composition of the IG 
Team. 

(c) Committee note IG developments effected and/or in 
progress, and the Final Internal Audit report of March 
2022.   

Reason for 
recommendations 

Its purpose is to provide an update to the Committee since its last 
report in April 2021 of the IG function within the Council.  

  

7

Agenda Item 7



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Drew Mellor 

Corporate Director  Susan Zeiss, Service Director, Law & Governance  

Report Author(s) Nigel Channer, Team Leader of Information Governance 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For update and information.   
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. IG first reported to the A&G Committee on 16 January 2019, and then in April 2021: 

2. As reported in April 2021 the following was implemented: 

a. BCP IG Accountability and Policy Framework - the policy and 
accountability framework covering all aspects of information governance, 
including compliance, information security and information records 
management. 

b. The framework was promoted through IG face-to-face training to March 
2020. Training provision since March 2020 has been delivered through 
the Council’s i-learning programme.  

c. Single point of entry into the organisation for requests for information 
(RFIs) under the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), the Environmental 
Information Regulations (EIRs) and the Data Protection Act (DPA), via 
Customer Services.   

d. BCP Information Governance Board (IGB), first convened on 27 February 
2020 and then on 10 March 2022. A priority has been updating 
membership and Terms of Reference (Appendix A).   

e. Internal Audit Final Report – Information Governance, Law & Governance 
- 2021/22 (Appendix C). The Audit opinion gave Reasonable Assurance. 

Performance Management Information (PMI)  

3. Appendix B - Tables 1-7 provide performance management information for the 
period April 2021-December 2021 Q1-Q3 (Q4 data not yet available). 

4. The appendices include commentary and are self-explanatory. 

5. The target response rate set by the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) for 
requests for information under the FOIA/EIRs is 90%.  The Council’s average 
response rate has been a commendable 86% for April to December 2021 compared 
73% in 2019/20 and 80% in 2020/21. 

6. The current position show signs of improvement during 2021/22 with incremental 
improvements each quarter, despite challenges from with reduction of IAA support in 
some service areas.    

 

The Information Governance Team 

8



7. The IG contributed to the savings within L&G Service by: 

a. The deletion of the Head of Information Governance post; 

b. The redesignation of the statutory DPO role to the Director of Law & 
Governance; 

c. The transfer of the IG Team to Legal Services line management 
arrangements; 

8. The Team currently comprises: 

a. Team Leader (0.50 fte) 

b. Information Governance Officers x4 (3.37 fte) 

The Team continues to successfully work remotely and deliver IG Services since the 
first lockdown due to the COVID pandemic in March 2020.  

IG Developments 

9. The 2021-22 Final Internal Audit report of March 2022 gave a Reasonable 
Assurance Audit opinion, with a total of 10 recommendations (8 medium priority and 
2 low priority). The following developments have been implemented or are in 
progress: 

Medium Priority 

a. Responsibility for Information Governance Compliance: The IG Board 
have agreed to provide an overarching responsibility for compliance 
areas. 

b. Self-assessment compliance tool: This work is completed with Service 
Units responding to requests to complete the self-assessment 
questionnaire. 

c. Information Governance Risk Management: The IG Board discussed the 
monitoring of corporate information governance risks and keeping this as  
standing agenda to facilitate continual risk assessment.  

d. Children’s Services attendance at Information Governance Board: 
Caldecott Guardians have been appointed and the IG Board monitors 
attendance of representatives from the service areas. 

e. Training performance report: The IG Team provide the information 
manually; further work is underway to extract the data from the databases 
to produce the information automatically and accurately.  

f. Training for Information Asset Advisers: Training materials are online and 
interactive flow-chart guide is be prepared. The IG team currently provide 
individual support via Team video link. 

g. Data Security Breach Register – Outstanding Breaches: While IG are 
developing a Power App they are providing the information manually to 
help service units understand the status of the breaches. 

h. Data Security Breach Register – Completeness Register: as above. 

Low Priority 

a. Review Schedule for Policy and Guidance documents: The 
recommendations to review the Corporate Retention & Disposal Schedule 

9



Guide in development, which will assist Service Units in improving and 
refining their Information Asset Registers (IARs), has been completed 
published circulated in June 2021. 

b. Update of Information Governance Policy: The recommendation to clarify 
the wording will be completed by July 2022.  

 

 

Other Developments 

10. Pan Dorset Information Governance Group has re-convened meeting on 30 
November 2021 and recently on 17 March 2022. The Group is responsible for the 
DiSC (Dorset Information Sharing Charter) that enables partner organisations to 
share information safely and provide a more integrated service for residents, and 
along with its own Terms of Reference are currently in the process of being 
reviewed. 

11. DiSC (Dorset Information Sharing Charter) BCP signatory update requested in July 
2020.  There are issues with the signatory process, which are being addressed by 
Dorset Council and should be resolved shortly. In the meantime, BCP does appear 
as a signatory. 

12. Microsoft Teams “channels” is fully established for IGB and Information Asset 
Advisors (IAAs).  The IAA channel provides improved communication and mutual 
support facility for the IAA Network. 

13. Work is ongoing to develop a dashboard which will include IG performance 
management information for Service Units.  The PMI will comprise data reported 
quarterly to IGB and annually to A&G Committee.  

14. All IG guidance has been reviewed and updated and is available on the BCP 
Intranet and reflects changes to legislation. This is under continual review to ensure 
its update. 

Options Appraisal 

15. Not applicable – this is an update report for information.  

 

Summary of financial implications 

16. The Information Commissioner’s Office is empowered to take enforcement action 
and impose sanctions, which can include significant financial penalties.   

Summary of legal implications 

17. This report is for information only and as such there are no legal implications arising. 
It is worth noting however that the Council is required to comply with the provisions 
of the UK General Data Protection Regulations. A failure to do so can result in 
significant fines and other sanctions including assessment and enforcement notices. 
Data subjects can bring claims for compensation in cases where their privacy rights 
have been breached. The Council is also required to comply with the provisions of 
the Freedom of Information Act. A failure to do so can similarly result in enforcement 
action being taken by the ICO.  

10



Summary of human resources implications 

18. There are no human resources implications from this report. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

19. There are no sustainability implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

20. There are no public health implications from this report.  

Summary of equality implications 

21. There are no equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

22. Not applicable – this is an update report for information. 

Background papers 

None    

Appendices   

Appendix A - Terms of Reference of IG Board 

Appendix B (Tables 1-7) – Performance Management Information 

Appendix C - Internal Audit Final Report – Information Governance, Law & Governance - 
2021/22 Published March 2022. 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 BCP INFORMATION GOVERNANCE BOARD (IGB) 

    

 
MEMBERSHIP      Appendix A 

 

CORPORATE 
LEVEL 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY 
LEVEL   

NAME TITLE IG ROLE SERVICE DELIVERY 
AREA OF CURRENT 
MEMBER    

NOMINATED 
DEPUTY 

Transformation  Transformation  Julian 
Osgathorpe/ 

Corporate 
Director 

Senior Information Risk 
Owner (SIRO) & Chair 
of Board 

 Susan Zeiss 

Customer 
Services & 
Business 
Delivery  

Matti Raudsepp Director  IAO Customer & Business 
Delivery  

Bridget West 

IT &IS Katie Lacey Director  IAO & IT Specialist  IT & IS Marc Biondic/Sarah 
Chamberlain  

HR&OD No 
representation 

    

PMO & Major 
Change  

No 
representation  

Head of 
Service  

   

Law & 
Governance  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L&G Susan Zeiss  Director Deputy SIRO, deputy 
Chair of Board & IAO 

 Not identified  

Legal Services No 
representation  

Head of 
Service  

   

Information 
Governance  

Viv Bateman Head of 
Service  

IG specialist  Information Governance  No deputy available  

Democratic 
Services  

No 
representation  

Head of 
Service  

   

Electoral 
Services & Land 
Charges 

No 
representation  

Head of 
Service 

   

13



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 BCP INFORMATION GOVERNANCE BOARD (IGB) 

    

Finance (& 
Section 151) 

Finance Adam Richens  Director  IAO Finance  Nigel Stannard  
Audit & 
Management 
Assurance  

Ruth Hodges Audit Manager Internal audit specialist    Audit  N/A 

Strategic 
Procurement  

No  
representation  

Head of 
Service  

   

Development  Chris Shephard Director  IAO  Adrian Hale 
Children’s 
Services  

Children’s Social 
Care 

Jane White  Director  IAO  Not identified  

Commissioning  Penny Davies Interim Head 
of QA 

Caldicott Guardian   Jane Potter  

SEND No 
representation  

Head of 
Service  

   

Education No 
representation  

Director     

Front Door & 
Early Help 

Lorraine 
Marshall 

Interim 
Director  

IAO  Not identified  

Complex 
Safeguarding  

No 
representation  

Strategic 
Leader 

   

Permanency & 
Corporate 
Parenting  

Brian Relph  Interim 
Director  

IAO  Not identified  

Performance  No 
representation  

Head of 
Service  

   

Adult Social 
Care 

Operations  Betty Butlin  Director  IAO & Caldicott 
Guardian 

 Tim Branson  

Commissioning   Commissioning Peter Courage Head of ASC 
Transformation 
& Integration 

IAO  Wendy Francis 

Operations  Communities  Kelly Ansell Director  IAO  Sue Kerr 

14



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 BCP INFORMATION GOVERNANCE BOARD (IGB) 

    

Destination & 
Culture  

Chris Saunders  Director  IAO  Nicola Good  

Transport & 
Engineering  

Julian 
McLaughlin  

Director  IAO  Mike Kellaway/Richard 
Salt 

Environment  Vacant  Director  IAO  Judy Erven  

Planning  Colin Walker   Director  IAO  Nick Perrin   

Housing  Lorraine 
Mealings  

Director  IAO  Tracy Priestly 

Regeneration  Regeneration  No 
representation  

Director     

Policy & 
Research  

Policy & 
Research  

Bridget West  Head of 
Service 

IAO  Not identified  

Communications 
& Marketing 

Communications 
& Marketing  

No 
representation  

Director     

Public Health  Public Health  No 
representation  

Director     

 

Board members will attend all meetings and assume collective responsibility for decision making in respect of the Council’s 
developing information governance framework. 

 
Information Asset Owners (Directors) will nominate deputies if they are unable to attend Board meetings.  Deputies should be at 
Service Manager level or equivalent. Information Asset Advisors (IAAs) should not deputise unless they are Service Managers or 

equivalent. 
 

 
 

15



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 BCP INFORMATION GOVERNANCE BOARD (IGB) 

    

Board Administrator 
 

 Principal Information Governance Officer (post currently vacant). 
 

Other attendees 
 
The Board may request the attendance of any Council officers at any time, subject to the content of the Board meeting and 

availability of officers.    
 
ACCOUNTABILITY  

 
The Board will report to the Corporate Leadership Team 

 
PURPOSE OF THE BOARD 

 

To provide advice and assurance to the Council on all matters concerning Information Governance.  
 
OBJECTIVES 

 

To be responsible for the engagement of the Council with the information governance function.  
 
To ensure the Council has a comprehensive information governance accountability framework with effective management 

arrangements, policies, procedures, guidance and IG training programme, covering all aspects of Information Governance.   
 

To ensure all relevant IG risks are identified and reflected in Service Unit Risk Registers.  
 
To ensure the Council undertakes compliance reviews of its Information Governance framework, policies, procedures and guidance 

and management arrangements. 
 

To receive information governance performance management information in respect of: 

 IG training  

 Information security breaches 

16



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 BCP INFORMATION GOVERNANCE BOARD (IGB) 

    

 Freedom of Information/Environmental Information Regulations requests 

 Subject Access requests (under the Data Protection Act) 

 Other third-party disclosure requests in association with Information Sharing protocols 

 Complaints to the Information Commissioner’s Office 

 Progress on addressing information governance risks in Service Unit Risk Registers  
 

And identify any: 

 Additional risks to be reflected in Service Unit Risk Registers   

 Requirement to effect changes to the Council’s IG Accountability Framework 

 Requirement for new or updated corporate or service unit policy, procedure, or guidance and assign responsibility for 

overseeing implementation  

 Improvements to the management & administration of requests for information, Service Unit Information Asset Registers 
(IARs) and the publication of information to meet transparency requirements  

 Additional IG training needs 
 

To liaise with other Council committees, working groups and programme boards to promote Information Governance practice. 
 

To formulate and receive guidance from supporting Council committees, boards and groups as appropriate. 
 
To ensure full and effective liaison with all external organisations such as the Information Commissioner, police and health authorities 

and other relevant partner agencies.  
 

To report to the Corporate Management Board on major IG developments and risks and to carry out such other tasks as may be 
required of it by the Council. 
 
MEETING & REPORTING  

 

Meetings will be held quarterly.  
 
The Board will review frequency of meetings on an annual basis.  

 
Minutes of meeting will be circulated within two weeks of the date the meeting was held. 

17



 

TERMS OF REFERENCE  

 BCP INFORMATION GOVERNANCE BOARD (IGB) 

    

 
APPROVAL & REVIEW  

 
Terms of reference for the Board and membership will be agreed with Corporate Leadership Team and reviewed annually. 

18



Appendix B – Tables 1-7 
TABLE 1 – FOI/EIR REQUESTS 2019-20 to 2021-22  

ALL FOI / EIR REQUESTS 2019/20 to 2021/22* 

*to Q3 (December 2021)

REQUESTER TYPES 2019/20 to 2021/22* 

Requestor Type: 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22* Total 

Campaign Group 45 27 36 110 
Company 289 267 207 764 
Councillor 3 3 3 9 
Education - Researcher/Student 49 45 23 117 
Media 178 94 98 370 
MP/Parliamentary Researcher 6 7 6 19 
Other/Non specified 16 10 23 50 
Other Government Agency 21 18 16 55 
Staff 0 1 0 1 
Police 4 3 0 7 
Public 666 713 531 1911 
Solicitors 12 7 7 26 
Voluntary/Charitable Organisation 31 10 13 54 
TOTAL 1320 1205 963* 3493 

*to Q3 (December 2021)

- Average number requests between 300-350 per quarter

- 57% of requests are received from members of public
followed by 22% from Companies

- Numbers of requests from the public increased during
the height of Covid in 2020/21

- Based on the current run rate for 2021/22 (an average
of 107 requests per month) the year end figure is
projected to increase on previous year to 1289 requests

*to Q3 (December 2021)

Requests Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 
2019-20 358 349 309 304 1320 
2020-21 217 353 311 324 1205 
2021-22* 352 299 312 963* 

3%
22%

0%3%
9%

1%1%2%0%0%

57%

1%1%

FOI/EIR REQUESTER TYPES 
TOTAL 2020/21 to 2021/22*

Campaign Group

Company

Councillor

Education

Media

MP

Other

Other Gov

Staff

19



Appendix B – Tables 1-7 
TABLE 1 – FOI/EIR REQUESTS 2019-20 to 2021-22  

CROSS CUTTING REQUESTS 2019/20 to 2021/22* 
(Requests covering more than one Service Unit) 

*to Q3 (December 2021)

*to Q3 (December 2021)

24

19
20

19

29
27

26

22 22
20

21

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Cross cutting requests comparison 2019/21 to 2021/22*

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Corporate Cross 
Cutting Requests 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

2019/20 24 19 26 20 89 

2020/21 19 29 22 21 91 

2021/22* 20 27 22 69* 

20



Appendix B – Tables 1-7 
TABLE 2 – FOI EXEMPTIONS 2019-20 to 2021-22   

Number of FOI exemptions & EIR Exceptions used 2019/20 to 2021/22* 

*to December 2021

- Since the creation of the Council, 127 requests have been fully or partly refused with the use of exemptions
from the Freedom of Information Act or exceptions from the Environmental Information Regulations

- The use of these have reduced over the years shown and so far in the current financial year they have only
been used 7 or 8 times.

- Information for quarter 4 2021-22 (Jan -Mar 2022) is not currently available as some requests will still be in
the process of being responded to.

Description of FOI exemptions used July 2020 – December 2021 
comparing the last 6 financial quarters 

Exemption Q2 Jul- Sep 
2020 

Q3 Oct-Dec 
2020 

Q4 Jan-Mar 
2021 

Q1 Apr-Jun 
2022 

Q2 Jul-Sep 
2021 

Q3 Oct-Dec 
2021 Total 

S21 4 4 1 1 10 
S22 1 1 1 1 4 
S30 2 1 3 
S31 3 3 
S32 3 3 
S38 1 1 
S40 1 2 2 2 3 1 11 
S43 2 1 5 8 
S21 & S22 1 1 
S22 & S43 1 1 2 
S40 & S41 1 1 
S40 & S43 1 1 1 3 
S22, S43 & S36 1 1 
TOTAL 12 11 5 8 7 8 51 

Key to exemptions 
Section 21 - Information accessible by other means (already published) 
Section 22 - Information intended for future publication 
Section 30 - Public authority investigations/proceedings 
Section 31 - Law enforcement 
Section 32 - Information in court records  
Section 36 - Prejudice to the effective conduct of public affairs 
Section 38 - Health & Safety 
Section 40 - Personal Information 
Section 41 - Information provided in confidence 
Section 42 - Legal professional privilege 
Section 43 - Commercial interests 

- The use of exemptions is low when comparing between quarters
- Exemptions which have been used to with-hold information the most in the last 6 financial quarters have been

those covering personal information, information which is already published and commercial interests (either of
the Council or a third party)

- Exceptions have not been used for any EIR requests since before July 2020

All Requests Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

2019-20 16 22 23 7 68 
2020-21 8 12 11 5 36 
2021-22* 8 7 8 23 
TOTAL 32 41 42 12 127 

21



TABLE 3 – FOI/EIR response rates within 20 days (April 2019- Dec 2021) 

FOI/EIR RESPONSES BY SERVICE UNIT 2019/2020 

Service Unit Q1 
Requests 

% 
Response 
Rate 

Q2 
Requests 

% 
Response 

Rate 
Q3 
Requests 

% 
Response 

Rate 

Q4 
Requests 

% 
Response 

Rate 
Adult Social Care 29 86% 21 71% 17 82% 21 96% 
Children’s Social Care 30 80% 29 76% 29 86% 27 96% 
Communities 42 60% 47 47% 36 64% 33 60% 
Corporate 24 38% 18 50% 19 84% 19 74% 
Customer, Prog & Policy 1 0% 1 100% 3 100% 2 100% 
Destination and culture 2 100% 7 100% 6 100% 2 100% 
Development 3 0% 2 50% 0 N/A 1 100% 
Environment 33 64% 44 68% 29 79% 31 75% 
Finance 14 64% 18 67% 6 83% 18 100% 
Growth and Infrastructure 43 51% 47 62% 29 86% 31 75% 
Housing 33 55% 26 42% 10 60% 20 60% 
Human resources 11 82% 7 57% 4 50% 3 99% 
Inclusion family & learning 45 71% 26 85% 25 80% 32 94% 
IT & IS 6 83% 11 91% 11 91% 13 100% 
Law and Governance 7 86% 7 71% 5 100% 7 86% 
Poole Housing 3 67% 0 N/A 0 N/A 5 100% 
Revenues & Benefits 27 74% 25 80% 11 N/A 13 70% 
Totals 353 65% 336 66% 240 80% 278 81% 

Total FOI/EIR request received FY 2019/20 1207 
Average % FY 2019/20 73% 

22



TABLE 3 – FOI/EIR response rates within 20 days (April 2019- Dec 2021) 

FOI/EIR RESPONSES BY SERVICE UNIT 2020/21 

Service Unit Q1 
Requests 

 % Response 
Rate 

Q2 
Requests 

% Response 
Rate Q3 Requests 

% 
Response 
Rate 

Q4 
Requests 

% 
Response 
Rate 

Adult Social Care 12 92% 17 100% 13 85% 22 100% 
Children’s Social Care 12 90% 17 77% 28 65% 26 89% 
Communities 32 93% 49 98% 42 100% 31 100% 
Corporate 18 70% 28 58% 21 81% 21 81% 
Customer, Prog Policy 3 70% 1 0% 
D & S 10 90% 21 91% 3 67% 6 66% 
Development 6 66% 12 92% 2 50% 8 50% 
Environment 13 54% 41 59% 45 76% 45 84% 
Finance 11 100% 14 65% 16 69% 19 84% 
Growth and 
Infrastructure 

17 80% 51 55% 46 59% 46 74% 

Housing 10 80% 17 95% 17 100% 18 95% 
Human resources 7 43% 6 68% 10 90% 10 70% 
Inclusion family & 
learning 

14 92% 24 96% 27 93% 24 75% 

IT & IS 10 100% 11 91% 11 91% 17 95% 
Law and Governance 6 90% 11 91% 11 91% 7 72% 
Public Health 4 100% 1 100% 
Revenues & Benefits 
(SVPP) 

14 80% 28 72% 20 65% 24 75 

Overall Total 196 81% 351 78% 313 79% 324 83% 

Total FOI/EIR request received FY 2020/21 1184 
Average % FY 2020/21 80% 

23



TABLE 3 – FOI/EIR response rates within 20 days (April 2019- Dec 2021) 

FOI/EIR RESPONSES BY SERVICE UNIT 2021/22* 

*to Q3 (December 2021)

Service Unit Q1 Requests  % Response 
Rate Q2 Requests % Response 

Rate Q3 Requests 
% Response 
Rate 

Adult Social Care 21 100% 17 94% 21 86% 
Children’s Social Care 31 89% 30 90% 47 80% 
Communities 34 100% 31 97% 39 100% 
Corporate 20 81% 27 82% 21 66% 
Customer, Prog Policy 
D & S 13 66% 7 86% 8 88% 
Development 6 50% 5 100% 10 70% 
Environment 56 84% 46 87% 41 78% 
Finance 11 84% 17 83% 14 86% 
G & I 
(Now TE&P) 

51 74% 

T & E (G & I) 21 95% 25 88% 
Planning (G & I) 18 95% 13 100% 
Housing 26 95% 25 80% 25 92% 
Human resources 9 70% 3 100% 7 100% 
Inclusion family & learning 24 75% 17 71% 3 100% 
IT & IS 16 95% 8 100% 9 100% 
Law and Governance 12 72% 6 100% 4 75% 
Revenues & Benefits 
(SVPP) 

13 75% 16 81% 22 82% 

Overall Total 343 83% 311 88% 309 87% 

Total FOI/EIR request received FY 2021/22* 963* 
Average % FY 2021/22* 86% 

24



TABLE 3 – FOI/EIR response rates within 20 days (April 2019- Dec 2021) 

*to Q3 (December 2021)

- Performance improving year on year from transition to BCP in 2019 rising from an average of 73% to 86%* (to December 2021)

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22*

BCP FOI/EIR Average performance - yearly trend 2019 to 2022*

Average FOI/EIR

25



TABLE 3 – FOI/EIR response rates within 20 days (April 2019- Dec 2021) 

6%

16%

15%

35%

21%

7%

FOI/EIR Request volumes by Directorate & Cross Cutting
April 2021 to Dec 2021

Adult Social Care

Childrens Services

Regeneration & Economy

Environment & Community

Corporate Resources

Cross Cutting

26



TABLE 4 – Internal reviews and ICO Complaints managed by the Information Governance Team (April 2019-December 2021) 

Period Outcome Internal Review ICO Complaint 
Q1 2019-20 Position maintained 2 

Q2 2019-20 
Full Information released 2 
Partial information released 1 

Q3 2019-20 Partial information released 2 
Q4 2019-20 Position maintained 3 

Q1 2020-21 
Position maintained 1 1* 
Full Information released 2 

Q2 2020-21 Position maintained 1 
Full Information released 2 

Q3 2020-21 
Position maintained 3 
Full Information released 5 2 

  Q4 2020-21 Position maintained 1 
  Q1 2021-22 Full Information released 3 

Position maintained 4 
  Q2 2021-22 Position maintained 3 1 

Full Information released 3 
  Q3 2021-22 Position maintained 4 1 

Partial information released 1 
Full Information released 1 

TOTALS 44 4 
Figures show the number of cases raised following FOI/EIR responses except * which was a Subject Access Request 

The number of internal reviews requested has increased to 18 so far in the 2021-22 financial year from 14 in the 2020-21 financial year and 10 in 2019-20. 

Complainants will only contact the ICO when they are not satisfied with the outcome of an internal review. The ICO complaints shown for 2021-22 are the 
result of investigations into the Council’s response to requests following an internal review.  

The Pie chart on page 2 is showing the outcomes to internal reviews since the creation of the Council where half of reviews maintained the position of the 
original response.  

27



Full Information released 
30%

Position maintained
50%

Partial Information released 
20%

Outcomes to Internal Reviews (April 2019-December 2021)

28



TABLE 5 – SUBJECT ACCESS REQUESTS BY SERVICE UNIT 2019/20-2021/22 

*to Q3 (December 2021)

- Highest volumes of SAR’s handled by BCP remain consistently within
Children’s Services

- Decrease in overall number of SAR’s on proceeding years 2019/21
- Significant increase in SAR’s received by Housing from 20/21 to 21/22
- Number of SAR’s received by HR returned to lower number after significant

increase during 20/21

13%

63%

1%

14%

4%5%

SAR volumes by Directorate & Cross Cutting
2020/21-2021/22*

Adult Social Care

Childrens Services

Regeneration & Economy

Environment & Community

Corporate Resources

Cross Cutting

Requests by Service Unit 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/22* Total 

Adult Social Care 24 15 22 61 
Children’s Social Care 116 127 101 344 
Communities 8 8 7 24 
Cross Cutting 6 8 8 22 
Customer, Prog & Policy 1 1 
Destination and culture 1 1 
Environment 2 1 3 
Growth and Infrastructure 5 5 
Housing 12 9 17 38 
Human resources 4 15 6 25 
Inclusion family & learning 26 14 9 49 
Law and Governance 1 1 1 3 
Revenues & Benefits (SVPP) 2 1 3 
Transport & Engineering 2 2 
Overall Total 207 199 174 581 

29



TABLE 6 – DISCLOSURE STATISTICS 2019/20 – 2021/22 

These figures relate to the sharing of personal information for the purposes of     
Police investigation and prosecution, proof of life, health care records and social 
care records. 

(a) – DISCLOSURE REQUESTS BY YEAR 2019/20 – 2021/22*

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22* 

DISCLOSURE REQUESTS 263 386 408 

*to December 2021

(b) - DISCLOSURE BY REQUESTOR 2019/20– 2021/22*

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22* 
DISCLOSURE POLICE 102 144 73 
DISCLOSURE THIRD PARTIES 161 239 335 

263 383 408 
*to December 2021

- Increase in overall disclosure requests year on year since 2019
- Highest volume of disclosure requests remains consistently with CSC closely followed by ASC
- Increase in disclosure requests for cross cutting during 2021/22

263

386
408

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Disclosure Statistics 2019/20- 2021/22*

30



(c) - REQUESTS BY SERVICE UNITS 2019/20 – 2020/22*

SERVICE UNIT 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22* 
Adult Social Care 74 144 145 
Children’s Social Care 163 216 215 
Environment & Communities 11 2 22 

 Cross Cutting Requests 11 9 25 
Corporate Resources 4 5 
Regeneration & Economy 5 1 
Total 263 381 408 
*to December 2021

*to December 2021

- Largest volume of disclosure requests logged remain consistently within Children’s Services,
closely followed by Adult Social Care

- Cross cutting requests amount to 3% of the overall total

36%

53%

5%

6%

0%

Requests by Directorate & Cross Cutting 2021/2022*

ASC

CSC

Environment & Communities

Cross Cutting

Corporate Resources

Regeneration & Economy

31



Appendix B – Tables 1-7 
TABLE 7 – INFORMATION GOVERNANCE TRAINING 2019-20 to 2021-22    

Number of online IG training sessions completed for mandatory courses 2019/20 to 
2021/22* 

*to December 2021

The table above is showing the take up of mandatory online IG training across all courses and Service 
areas. As such the figures will include staff who have undertaken more than one of the mandatory 
courses.  

Online IG training has been the main provision of IG training since April 2020 when COVID restrictions 
were imposed and it was agreed that online training was the preferred  method of delivering IG training 
going forward. 

The online course offer currently includes 4 mandatory IG courses. 

- Data Protection Essentials
- Freedom of Information
- Information Governance
- Information Management

Comparing the figures quarterly, there was a slight drop in take up during the months of the COVID 
restrictions in April 2020 however since then there has been a significant increase in take up.  

The Council’s HR Learning & Development Team have been working to raise awareness of all 
mandatory training. During the spring and summer of 2021, the focus of this was placed on IG training 
which has seen the take up increase from 827 to nearly 3000 course completions, dropping to just 
over 2000 during the autumn months of 2021.   

All Requests Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

2019-20 214 179 215 260 
2020-21 143 153 280 345 
2021-22* 827 2948 2095 
TOTAL 

32



  APPENDIX C 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORT – Information 
Governance, Law and Governance - 2021/22  
 

Page | 1 
This report is private and confidential and has been prepared solely for internal use by or on behalf of BCP Council, and must not be disclosed 
to any third party without the written approval of the Head of Audit & Management Assurance.  The Council, its employees, agents and 
advisors accept no responsibility, liability or duty of care to any third party for any matters, observations or conclusions which are stated or 
implied in this report.   

A. Executive Summary 

On the basis of our fieldwork, we are able to provide the following level of assurance on the 
overall adequacy of the control framework as per our audit scope: 

Audit Opinion: 

Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a sound control framework which is designed to achieve the service 

objectives, with key controls being consistently applied.   

Reasonable 
Assurance 

Whilst there is basically a sound control framework, there are some 
weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk.   

Partial 
Assurance 

There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting service 
objectives at risk.   

Minimal 

Assurance 

The control framework is generally poor as such service objectives are at 

significant risk.   
 

Recommendations: 

PRIORITY High Medium Low Total 

Number of Recommendations 0 8 2 10 
 

Recommendations from 2019/20 Information Governance Report 

No. of Medium Priority Recs  7 

Previously implemented 2 

Superseded by new Recs 2 

Still to implement  3 
 

Summary of Findings: 

Medium Priority 

 Responsibility for Information Governance compliance: roles and responsibilities for all areas of 

information governance compliance not currently defined.  

 Self-assessment compliance tool: self-assessment tool has not been implemented and includes 
areas that require clarification. 

 Information Governance Risk Management: responsibility and processes for managing 
corporate, council-wide, information governance risk are not defined or implemented. 

 Children’s Services attendance at Information Governance Board: no representatives from any 
of the Children’s Services areas have attended the IGB for a prolonged period. 

 Training performance reporting: performance reporting on Information Governance training does 
not provide a comprehensive assessment of completion.  

 Training for Information Asset Advisers: IAAs are not provided with role specific training. 

 Data Security Breach Register – Outstanding Breaches: a significant proportion of historic 

breaches are still categorised as ‘outstanding’ 

 Data Security Breach Register – Completeness of Register: entries in the register are missing 
risk rating and referral date information.  

Low Priority 

33



 

Page | 2  
 

 Review Schedule for Policy and Guidance documents: there is no schedule in place covering 
the review and update of all information governance policy and guidance documents.   

 Update of Information Governance Policy: the policy contains potentially misleading wording 
regarding the need to report issues to the Annual Governance Statement.  

 

B. Audit Objectives, Scope & Methodology 

The control framework is the system of risk management, internal control and governance 
put in place by management to ensure that objectives are achieved, waste and inefficiency is 
minimised and to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.   
 
This audit was conducted as part of the 2021/22 BCP Annual Audit Plan.  Our objectives 
were to provide assurance that the control framework is appropriate and that the controls 
and processes are operating effectively in BCP Council’s Core Information Governance 
arrangements as outlined in the agreed Terms of Reference including: 
 

 Strategy and Policy 

 Governance 

 Training 

 Operational Activity and Co-ordination  
 Follow up of 2019/20 Information Governance internal audit medium priority 

recommendations 
 

Where weaknesses in the control framework are identified, recommendations have been 
made for improvement and are detailed in Section C of this report.   
 
We undertake our work on a risk and sample basis in line with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and as such we do not test all internal controls nor identify all areas of control 
weakness, fraud or irregularity, however, any issues identified during the course of our work 
are reported to management  
 

Recommendation Priority Ratings: 

High 
Priority 

High priority recommendations have actual / potential critical implications for achievement 
of the Service’s objectives and/or a major effect on service delivery. Agreed actions should 
be urgently implemented by the Service within 3 months of the issue of the final audit  

report and the associated risk(s) added to the Service Risk Register.  Recommendations 
will be followed-up by Internal Audit as they fall due. 

Medium 

Priority 

Medium priority recommendations have actual / potential significant implications for 
achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a significant effect on service delivery .  

Agreed actions should be implemented by the Service within 9 months of the issue of the 
final audit report and formal consideration should be given to adding the associated risk (s) 
to the Service Risk Register. Recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as 

part of the next audit review or within 12 months after the implementation due date 
(whichever is sooner). 

Low 
Priority 

Low Priority recommendations have actual / potential minor implications for achievement 
of the Service’s objectives and/or a minor effect on service delivery. It rests with the Service 

to implement these actions and advise Internal Audit of the outcome.    

 
ISSUED ON 
BEHALF OF: 

Nigel Stannard, Head of Audit & Management Assurance (Chief 
Internal Auditor) 

AUTHOR James Paterson, Auditor & Ruth Hodges, Audit Manager (Deputy CIA) 
DATE March 2022  Version Number: Final 1.0 
DISTRIBUTION:  Julian Osgathorpe - Corporate Director, Transformation 

Susan Zeiss - Director, Law and Governance    

Nigel Channer - Team Leader, Contracts, Commercial and IG 

34



 

Page | 3  
 

Simon Milne, Audit Manager (Deputy CIA) 

35



 

Page | 4  
 

C. Detailed Findings & Recommendations 

 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

Strategy and Policy 

R1 Review Schedule for Policy and Guidance  

Issue: There is no schedule for the reviewing 
Information Governance policies and associated 
guidance. As these documents often overlap or 

make reference to one another, an ad hoc 
approach to updates could result in inconsistencies 
emerging between them.  

Risk: There is a risk that information governance 
arrangements may become ineffective or 

inconsistent or fail to reflect updated legislative 
requirements or objectives.   

It is recommended that a 
review schedule, including 

details of all Information 
Governance templates, 
guidance notes and policy 

documents is established 
and utilised. 

Low 

 

Policies have been 
reviewed and 

approved by IGB. 
Next review date 
August 2023, which is 

recorded in the policy 
documents. 

Guidance notes are 

annotated when 
updated (most were 
reviewed in 2020). 

Agreed review 
schedule to be 
developed by Team. 

Information 
Governance 

Officer 

July 2022 

R2 Update of Information Governance Policy 

Issue: The BCP Information Governance Policy 
includes the following wording “Information Asset 

Owners will also include information risks within 
their Annual Governance Statements.” This is 
potentially misleading as it indicates that any 

service exposure to information risk, regardless of 
how effectively it is being managed, should be 
included in the Annual Governance Statement.  

Only those issues that represent a significant 
governance concern, or a risk exposure that has 

not been managed effectively, should be included. 

It is recommended that the 

Information Governance 
Policy is amended to clarify 
that only significant 

governance concerns should 
be included in service 
Management Assurance 

Statements. 

Low IG risks will be 

identified by IAOs in 
SU Risk Registers or 
(in view of R5 below) 

a Corporate IG Risk 
Register, approved 
and monitored by IGB.   

SU AGSs will include 
any high-risk 
outcomes of the self-

assessment 
compliance checklist. 

Team Leader, 

Contracts, 
Commercial 
and IG 

July 2022 

36



 

Page | 5  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

Risk: There is a risk that unnecessary and 
potentially confusing information is submitted by 

services as part of the Annual Governance 
process, leading to significant issues not being 
reported on effectively.  

Governance 

R3 Responsibility for Information Governance 
Compliance  

Issue: There are several areas of information 

governance in the council that are either not 
subject to active compliance checks and 
monitoring or where the responsibility for such 

checks is unclear, including the development, 
implementation and maintenance of Information 
Asset Registers, completion of Data Protection 

Impact Assessments, completion and publication of 
privacy notices. 

Risk: There is a risk that the council fails to meet 
its legislative responsibilities, exposing it to 

reputational damage and legal challenge. 

It is recommended that the 
roles and responsibilities for 
checking and monitoring the 

service requirements for 
Information Governance is 
reviewed to ensure a 

comprehensive compliance 
framework is in place. 

Medium This will be taken to 
IGB to agree an 
approach where the 

IGB has overarching 
responsibility for 
compliance.   

Team Leader, 
Contracts, 
Commercial 

and IG 

April 2022 

R4 Self-assessment tool for compliance checks 
not yet in place 

Issue: The previous 2019/20 Information 
Governance audit identified that: 
 

Following on from an IGB meeting held on 
26/2/2020, the IG team was tasked with researching 
for a self-assessment tool to enable the team to 
complete information governance compliance 

checks throughout the Council as part of their 

It is recommended that the 
self-assessment tool is 
developed and implemented 

by Information Governance to 
support the wider compliance 
framework.  

 
The above supersedes the 
2019/20 recommendation.  

Medium The self-assessment 
has been issued to 
services for response.   

The results will be 
collated and provided 
to IGB for analysis 

and action.   

Team Leader, 
Contracts, 
Commercial & 

IG 

July 2022 

37



 

Page | 6  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

second line of defence role. The team is still in the 
process of gathering this information. 

 
As part of the current audit, it was confirmed that the 
self-assessment had yet to be implemented. In 

addition, it is important that the objectives of this 
document regarding compliance checks, ownership 
and timeframes for completion are clearly defined.  

Risk: There is a risk that the council fails to meet 
its legislative responsibilities, exposing it to 
reputational damage and legal challenge. 

R5 Information Governance Risk Management  

Issue: At the October 2020 Audit and Governance 
Committee, it was agreed that Information 

Governance risk would be removed from the 
corporate risk register, on the basis that this would 
be monitored by the Information Governance Board 

and escalated back to CMB should the level of risk 
increase. However, this is not done by the IGB, nor 
is it part of their terms of reference. There is also no 

risk assessment or register for corporate information 
governance risks. 

Risk: There is a risk that corporate information 
governance risks are not identified and appropriately 

managed, leading to breaches of legislation, 
financial penalties, reputational damage, and 
operational inefficiencies.  

Note: The forthcoming BCP Council Risk  

Management policy will also require corporate risks 

It is recommended that 

monitoring of corporate 
information governance risks 
is included in the Information 

Governance Board's Terms of 
Reference, and that this forms 
part of their standard agenda. 

It is recommended that the 

IGB ensures a risk 
assessment of corporate 
information risk is undertaken, 

including consideration of the 
following areas; 

 Legislative risk – 
breaches of compliance 

with data protection law, 
leading to censure from 
government agencies and 

challenges in the courts 

 Financial risk – penalties 
levied on the council due 

Medium The Interim Team 

Leader, Contracts, 
Commercial & IG will 
liaise with the SIRO 

and IGB to facilitate 
undertaking a risk 
assessment and 

producing an 
information risk 
register. 

Team Leader, 

Contracts, 
Commercial & 
IG 

July 2022 

38



 

Page | 7  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

to be managed via the responsible governance 
boards via a key assurance area risk  register. 

 

 

 

 

 

to breaches of 
governance requirements, 

financial costs associated 
with breaches of contract 
with partners etc 

 Reputational risk – due to 
loss or leaks of 
confidential data and 
information 

 Organisation risk – 
service disruption due to 
data breaches and 

failures in information 
systems 

 Emerging risk – arising 

from changes to council 
structure, service delivery 
methods and legislative 

requirements. 

It is recommended that the 
above assessment is used to 
produce, and regularly 

monitor, an information risk 
register (as directed in the 
draft BCP Council Risk 

Management policy). 

The above supersedes the 
risk  register 
recommendation identified in 

the 2019/20 audit. 

 

39



 

Page | 8  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

R6 Children’s Services – Attendance at the IGB 

Issue: No attendees from any of the Children’s 

service areas, including the Children’s Caldicott 
Guardian, have attended a meeting of the IGB 
between October 2020 and October 2021.  

Risk: There is an increased risk of non-compliance 

with legislative requirements, reputational damage 
and potential financial penalties.        

It is recommended that an 
escalation procedure is put 

in place to respond to any 
persistent absence of 
services from the IGB, 

especially those with high 
exposure to information and 
data risk. 

Medium The Interim Team 
Leader, Contracts, 

Commercial & IG has 
agreed with the SIRO 
that the IGB Chair will 

monitor and respond 
to any ongoing lack of 
attendance by 

services. 

SIRO/Deputy 
SIRO  

Implemented 

Training  

R7 Training Performance Reporting  

Issue: Performance reporting to the IGB on the 

completion of training only provides a quarterly 
snapshot, it does not provide a comprehensive 
record of the total proportion of officers who have 

completed it. As such IGB are not made aware of 
specific services where a significant proportion of 
staff have failed to complete training. 

Risk: There is a risk that service areas with poor 

training are more likely to be the source of data 
protection breaches and are also more likely to be 
penalised by the ICO.  

It is recommended that a 
comprehensive training 

performance report, detailing 
the proportion of officers in 
each service who have 

undertaken each module, is 
produced and provided to 
the IGB for action.  

Medium A comprehensive 
training report will be 

produced by the 
Information 
Governance Team for 

presentation to the 
IGB.  

Team Leader, 
Contracts, 

Commercial & 
IG  

From April 
2022 

R8 Training for Information Asset Advisers  

Issue: IAAs fulfil a vital role within the council, 
acting upon the majority of Information Governance 

activities that are delegated to services. Although 
guidance documents are made available to IAAs 
via the IAA network, the often complex demands of 

the role would benefit from specific training. 

It is recommended that IAAs 

are provided with specific 
training, pertinent to their 
roles to ensure they are able 

to meet corporate 
expectations. 

Medium Agreed.  Team Leader, 

Contracts, 
Commercial & 
IG/IG Team 

May 2022 

40



 

Page | 9  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

Risk: Without specific training with respect to their 
role, there is a risk that IAAs will either fail to 

deliver their roles effectively or will deliver incorrect 
information/advice to their respective services. 

Operational Activity and Co-ordination  

R9 Data Security Breach Register – Reporting on 
Historic Outstanding Breaches: 

Issue: Review of the data security breach registers 

for 2019/20 and 2020/21 confirmed the following;  

2019/20: total number of recorded breaches (not 

including cancellations) is 319, of which 103 were 
categorised as ‘outstanding’, of which 5 were 
classified as being of ‘high’ risk. 

2020/21: total number of recorded breaches (not 

including cancellations) is 309, of which 163 were 
categorised as ‘outstanding’, of which 3 were 
classified as being of ‘high’ risk. 

The quarterly reports provided to IGB only detail 

those new breaches that have been referred during 
the previous quarter, along with those of that 
number that are currently outstanding. There does 

not appear to be a total of historic outstanding 
breaches that has been reported to IGB. Of 
particular concern are the 8 outstanding breaches 

classified as being ‘high’ risk in 2019/20-2020/21.  

Risk: There is a risk that the issues that have 
caused breaches persist and that lessons resulting 
from them fail to be learnt and applied elsewhere in 

the council. 

It is recommended that the 

quarterly IGB breach 
performance reports are 
updated to include all 

outstanding breach data.  

In addition, it is 
recommended that; 

 The timeframes against 
which the IG Team will 
request updates from 

services if no 
information has been 
received are defined. 

 A procedure for 
escalating failure to 
close down outstanding 

breach reports is put in 
place.   

 

Medium Automated security 

breach online tool has 
been developed by IG 
Team, using M/S 

Power Tools 
application. 
Consultation and 

testing with IAAs to be 
undertaken.  System 
will simplify and 

streamline process 
and engage IAAs in 
direct input of 

breaches within their 
SU.  

In the interim a 

comprehensive data 
breach report will be 
produced by the 

Information 
Governance Team for 
presentation to the 

IGB. 

Team Leader, 

Contracts, 
Commercial & 
or replacement 

IG/IG Officer 

April 2022 

41



 

Page | 10  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

R10 Data Security Breach Register – Completeness 
of Register: 

Issue: A high proportion of the entries in the 
Breach register do not have risk ratings allocated 
to them, including one which had been referred to 

the ICO.  

In addition, a high proportion of entries were 
missing breach dates and referral dates – 
information that should have been provided as part 

of the initial processing of the breach. 

Risk: Without complete data breach records there 
is a risk that the Council’s response to them will be 
inconsistent or ineffective and that reporting will fail 

to be accurate.  

It is recommended that; 

 all reported breaches 

are reviewed to assess 
the risk they present, 
and for this information 

to be recorded in the 
register.  

 the dates of all breaches 
and referrals to the IG 

Team are recorded in 
the register. 

Medium As agreed above.  Team Leader, 
Contracts, 

Commercial & 
IG or 
replacement/IG 

Officer 

April 2022 

Previous Recommendations  

R11 Information security policy monitoring and 
reporting process not defined 

Issue: Information security policy implementation 
and delivery is the responsibility of both IT and IG. 
Not clear whether there is a defined collaborative 

way of working, report production and reporting of 
information security issues to IGB. Currently the IG 
Team only report data breaches to IGB, other 

issues such as monitoring and restrictions, 
communications security, information security 
continuity and more are not captured in the current 

reporting process to IGB.    

Risk: Inadequate monitoring and reporting of 

issues emanating from implementation of the 
information security policy.   

It is recommended that there 
be defined monitoring and 
reporting roles and 

responsibilities between IG 
and IT on implementation of 
the IS policy. In addition, the 

teams should establish a 
regular exceptional high-risk 
reporting mechanism to IGB.  

 

Medium Agreed with 
management July 
2020. 

Liaison with ICT to 
discuss and resolve 
this issue will be 

carried out.  

Team Leader, 
Contracts, 
Commercial & 

IG  

 

April 2022 

42



 

Page | 11  
 

Ref 
No. 

Finding Recommendation Priority 
Status / Management 

Response 
Responsible 

Officer 
Target Date 

R12 Register of information sharing agreements in 
place but not up to date. 

Issue: No up to date Information Sharing 
Protocols/Agreement register in place.  

 Risk: Unauthorised sharing of information with 
parties not covered under the DISC. 

It is recommended that the 
Information Governance 

Team maintain an up to date 
information sharing 
agreements register which 

summaries all information 
sharing agreements for 
BCP. 

Medium 
The Information 
Governance Team will 

contact services to 
ensure up-to-date 
records of data sharing 

agreements are 
provided and compiled 
into a Register as 

suggested.  

Team Leader, 
Contracts, 

Commercial & 
IG  

September 
2022 

R13 
Central breach reporting tool not in place 

 
Issue: Information Governance should consider 
producing a portal or central breach reporting tool 

where Service Units can file and/or populate a 
breaches log for review by Information Governance. 
This would allow the IG Team to provide challenge 

to the Service Units on evidence submitted to the 
ICO in support of breaches.  
 

Risk: Failure to provide challenge to the Services on 
evidence submitted to the ICO in support of 
breaches 

 
 

 

It is recommended that 

Information Governance put 
in place a central breach 
reporting tool/portal which 

Service Units can use to log 
breaches. The reporting 
tool/portal should be visible 

to the Information 
Governance Team to allow 
them to monitor the nature 

and type of breaches being 
reported in Service Units 
and provide the opportunity 

to challenge the evidence 
provided to the ICO in 
support of breaches. It will 

also inform IG of areas of 
apparent weakness, so that 
it can provide additional 

advice and/or guidance 
documents to minimise 
potential information security 

risks.  

Medium Automated security 

breach online tool has 
been developed by IG 
Team, using M/S 

Power Tools 
application. 
Consultation and 

testing with IAAs to be 
undertaken.       

Team Leader, 

Contracts, 
Commercial 
and IG/IG 

Officer. 

April 2022 

 
 

43



T
his page is intentionally left blank

44



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update 

Meeting date  14 April 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report updates councillors on the position of the council’s 

Corporate Risk Register. The main updates are as follows: 

The following four new risks were added: 

 CR17 – Risk to Reputation of Place & Council if summer 
arrangements are not managed.  

 CR20 – Failure to adequately deliver the ambitions of the 
climate emergency declaration.  

 CR21 – Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP 
Council & increase in service requirements. 

 CR22 - Failure of local care market to meet increasing 
demand.  

The following risk was removed: 

 CR1 – Failure to respond to the needs arising from a 
changing demography. 

 
Additional risk updates are provided at paragraph 12-17. 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Members of the Audit and Governance Committee note the 
update provided in this report relating to corporate risks. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To provide assurance that corporate risks are being managed 
effectively and continue the development of the council’s 
arrangements for Risk Management and enhance its governance 
framework. 

  

45

Agenda Item 8



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant – Chief Executive 

Report Authors Fiona Manton 
Risk & Insurance Manager  
01202 127055 
fiona.manton@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Update and Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. Risk can be broadly defined as the possibility that an action, issue or activity 
(including inaction) will lead to a loss or an undesirable outcome. It follows that Risk 
Management is about the identification, assessment and prioritisation of risks 
followed by co-ordinated control of the probability and impact of that risk. 

2. In accordance with the Financial Regulations and the Risk Management Strategy, 
the Audit and Governance Committee are specifically responsible for ensuring 
appropriate and effective risk management processes. In practice, this means that 
the committee members must assure themselves that the council’s Risk 
Management framework is appropriate and operating effectively. The council’s 
Corporate Risk Register is an important element of this framework and is reviewed 
and updated on a quarterly basis. 

3. In line with the decision-making framework in place for BCP Council it was agreed 
that, effective from day one, BCP Council would, as an interim measure, adopt the 
legacy Bournemouth Risk Management framework. The scoring matrix in this 
framework was adjusted to reflect the increased remit of the new authority. A revised 
Risk Management framework for BCP Council is being finalised and will be included 
in the next update to this Committee. 

4. In addition to the quarterly reviews, in immediate practical terms, the Corporate 
Management Board continues to monitor risks and ensure appropriate and 
proportionate mitigating actions continue and evolve as risks change. 

Corporate Risk Review 

5. Members will recall from the previous updates that the Corporate Risk Register was 
established at the commencement of BCP Council. It has been routinely reviewed on 
a quarterly basis. Incorporated in each of the risks are the continuing impacts of the 
pandemic. 

6. During the last quarter this register has been reviewed and the evidence of this 
review is included in the risk summary at Appendix 1.  

7. Members will be aware that each risk is given a unique identifying number so where 
risks have been removed from the register the numbers will no longer run 
sequentially. 

46

mailto:fiona.manton@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


8. During the last review cycle, to continue to develop reporting on the performance of 
risks and enhance the overall management of risk, it was agreed that risks being 
considered at service level would be reviewed by Corporate Management Board 
(CMB). 

9. To achieve this Service Directors were requested to provide details of the five 
highest net risks currently present on their risk registers.  

10. In this context 88 service risks were collated. These risks were summarised and 
grouped by theme for review by CMB. The outcomes of this review are incorporated 
in the following updates to the Corporate Risk Register. 

11. In order to consider the complete risk framework, the final level of risk for review is 
those considered Key Assurance Risks. These include Information Governance, 
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity and Health and Safety and Fire 
Safety. A review of these risks is planned during the next quarter and a summary of 
the outcome of this review will be provided to this committee. 

Changes in Risk During Quarter 4 – 2021/2022 

12. During the quarter, some of the risks on the risk register have been reviewed and in 
addition to the routine updates to each risk, the material updates to the register are 
as follows: 

CR02 – Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements for children & adults. 
Reference to Adults has been removed from this risk with a new risk being added at 
CR22. 

CR09 – Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the delivery of services . 
This risk has been updated following the 2022/2023 Budget and Medium Term 
Financial Plan being approved by Council on 22 February 2022. A further update to 
the budget position is also provided. 

CR11 – Ability of the council to function and operate efficiently in the delivery of 
single services across the area of BCP. This risk was discussed by CMB and will be 
reviewed following the stocktake of progress that is planned.  

CR14 – Continuity of Public Health arrangements and evolution of outbreak 
management plan. This risk has been updated to reflect the current position taking 
into account the Prime Minister’s announcement on 21 February 2022 of the Living 
with COVID strategy. The status of this risk will continue to be monitored. 

CR15 – Effective people strategy. This risk has been updated to reflect additional 
factors such as the decision to defer the Pay and Reward programme and difficulties 
in recruiting and retaining staff.  

13. The following risks were added during the quarter: 

CR17 – Risk to Reputation of Place & Council if summer arrangements are not 
managed. This is a risk that has previously appeared on the risk register. Last year it 
reverted to service level with a requirement to review again this quarter. This review 
has taken place and the risk has been updated and added back to the register for 
this quarter. 

CR20 – Failure to adequately deliver the ambitions of the climate emergency 
declaration. The Members of the Audit & Governance Committee requested this risk 
be added to the Corporate Risk Register and a draft risk is now included. This risk 
will continue to develop with regular updates. 

47



CR21 – Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Council & increase in 
service requirements. This is a new risk added during the quarter with an initial draft 
provided in the register. Continuing developments will be reflected in the risk at the 
regular updates. 

CR22 - Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand. This risk has been 
added during the quarter to better articulate the position for Adult Social Care in 
terms of the challenges to meet escalating demands. 

14. The following risks were removed during the quarter: 

CR1 – Failure to respond to the needs arising from a changing demography. The risk 
has been removed following discussions with CMB. Risks CR2 – Failure to deliver 
effective safeguarding arrangements for children and CR22 - Failure of local care 
market to meet increasing demand, are currently being updated to ensure they 
include any elements of CR1 that continued to be relevant, and these updates will be 
reported to the next meeting of this committee. 

15. The following risks were considered and discussed during the quarter for inclusion in 
the Corporate Risk Register but were agreed to remain managed at service level or 
be subject to further discussion at this time: 

Road Safety – Consideration of this risk is intrinsically built into business as usual 
and reflected in the risk register of the Director of Transport & Engineering. Whilst 
this will be routinely reviewed, at this time it will continue as a service risk. 

A risk was considered and continues to be discussed around the council’s complaints 
process. This is currently a risk reviewed at service level but during the next quarter 
a further review will take place to determine if it needs to be considered at a 
corporate level. An update in this respect will be brought to the next meeting. 

Consideration was given during the quarter to a risk in relation to the management of 
council assets. Work is on-going to fully define this risk and reflect on the relevant 
risks being managed at service level in order to determine if this is risk that needs to 
be reviewed further to a corporate level. 

16. Whilst it may be noted that many of the risk scores have not changed, this is not 
reflective of management action or inaction. Risks will continue to be influenced by a 
number of factors including national impacts and operational environment changes. 
During each quarter risk owners routinely review the allocated scores along with 
further discussion by CMB. 

17. Full details of the updates for this quarter can be found in Appendix 1. 

Service Development  

18. In addition to the reviews of Corporate Risks, the Risk Management Team continues 
to be engaged in the refresh of service risk registers.  This includes engaging with 
services to understand their current risk arrangements, how these can be improved 
to deliver a proactive and dynamic Risk Management environment and how the Risk 
Management Team can support them in this to deliver a consistent and embedded 
approach to Risk Management throughout the council.  This work is progressing well. 

19. In conjunction with IT a project has been underway for the last 12 months to develop 
an application for the collation of all risk registers. This process is nearing conclusion 
with a soft launch on 6 April 2022 of initial functionality. Following initial live testing, 
all risk registers will be gradually added. In the future this will provide an increased 

48



ability to monitor and report on the risk registers and provide greater oversight of 
service level risks. 

20. During the last quarter, in conjunction with insurers, a risk review has been 
undertaken of the management arrangements for the council’s fleet vehicles The 
outcome of this review is awaited but initial feedback received was positive. 

21. Work is concluding on finalising the draft of a new Risk Management framework for 
BCP Council. Consideration will need to be given to the council's risk appetite by 
CMB and the processes for managing risk consistently across the council.  This 
builds on the current position and seeks to enhance the mechanisms for risk 
reporting and risk escalation. The updated Risk Management Policy for the council 
will be brought to the next meeting of this committee. 

22. As part of the role of the team, continuous “horizon scanning” is undertaken to 
identify issues that may give rise to risk to the council.  When matters are identified, 
these are raised with the relevant Corporate / Service Director for review and 
consideration of any necessary action. Examples during this quarter include: 

 Routinely reviewing the outcomes of internal audit reports to raise risk issues 
with the relevant service risk champion to ensure, if appropriate, they are 
suitably reflected and captured in the service risk register. 

 Distributing information on the ‘Protect Duty’ following the Home Office 
Consultation Report in January 2022. 

 

Summary of financial implications 

23. Financial implications relevant to risks are detailed within the relevant risk registers. 

Summary of legal implications 

24. There are no direct legal implications from this report. 

Summary of human resources implications 

25. There are no direct human resources implications from this report.  

Summary of sustainability impact 

26. There are no direct sustainability implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

27. There are no direct Public Health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

28. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

29. The risk management implications are set out within the content of this report. 

Background papers 

Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update Report to the Audit and 
Governance Committee on 13 January 2022 

49



Appendices   

Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register Update Q4 – 2021/2022  

 

 

 

 

50



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

 

 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

April 2022 

 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE Q4 - 2021/22 

 

1. UPDATES / CHANGES TO THE CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

1.1 The Corporate Risk Register (CRR) is updated quarterly. Numbering does not run sequentially as some risks have been removed as reported previously. 
1.2 Mitigation actions and significant changes this quarter are detailed below. 
1.3 Further actions and a target risk score is now included for each risk. 

 

 

51



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF 
RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
  

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR2 Failure to 

deliver effective 

safeguarding 

arrangements 

for children  

CHILDREN & 

COMMUNITIES 

 

 

Risk Owner: Chief Executive  

Risk Information: 

Corporate Context   
Safeguarding is the responsibility of all members and officers, and this is reflected in the Corporate Safeguarding 
Strategy which was agreed by Cabinet in September 2019.    
All relevant partners have worked across Children’s and Adults Safeguarding and Community Safety Partnerships to 

establish effective governance arrangements post Local Government Review which meet all required statutory 
requirements. As a relatively new Council covering a population of almost 400,000, BCP Council must ensure that it is 
working with all partners in the most effective way to identify, assess and respond to safeguarding and community safety 
issues, particularly those which cut across children’s, adults and community safety.     
  
Children’s Services 

The pan-Dorset Safeguarding Partnership is now working, and a BCP delivery arm is in place to link the 

safeguarding partnership closer to the BCP operational safeguarding service.  

• BCP has had a SEND inspection in June 2021 which identified significant gaps in services which are being 
addressed through Written Statement of Action (WSoA),  

• BCP had an Ofsted ILACS inspection Dec 2022 and was rated inadequate  
• Audits continue to review practice. There is still some way to before sufficient assurance can be given to remove 

this risk from the Corporate overview. 
 

Key Mitigations 

• Focus on the Children’s Services improvement journey and WSoA plan to ensure core services are safer for 
vulnerable children and young people.  

• The strongest mitigation is to have an effective front-door service which can respond in an agile and flexible way 
to unforeseen demands and changes in the pattern of safeguarding demands. The service is struggling to 
maintain an adequate level of service due to a rise in demand for assessments and considerable staffing 
difficulties. 
 

Communities 

Key consideration for the Communities directorate in discharging the range of duties provided across a range of 
services, community safety and domestic abuse in particular.  
 

Key Mitigations  
 

 Safeguarding processes in place - working in partnership across the council and other key agencies, 
particularly in regard to risks presented in high risk domestic abuse cases.  

 All relevant staff are trained, and referral processes are clear.  
 The refreshed BCP Community Safety Partnership Board have five strategic groups: 

o Domestic Abuse Strategic Group 

o Violence Reduction Strategic Group 
o Vulnerable Adult & Child Exploitation Group 
o Safer Communities Strategic Group 
o Reducing Harm from Substance Misuse Strategic Group 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
• Further strengthen the Adult 

Safeguarding Board performance 
and quality assurance processes 
and Safeguarding Adults 
Board’s line of sight to front line 
practice   
 

 
 

The relevant actions for this risk are 
set out in the Children’s Services 
Improvement Plan.  Progress on 
delivery of the action is reported to a 
robustly functioning Improvement 
Board  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Domestic Abuse Strategy approved 
and being implemented. Community 
Safety Partnership refreshed and 
working well with             clearly defined 
structure leads and governance. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

March 2024 

 

52



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF 
RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE  

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
  

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR4 Failure to 

provide 

adequate IT and 

cyber security 

 

 

Risk Owner:  Corporate Director Transformation 

Risk Information 

This risk continues as a corporate risk and includes the additional considerations of the pandemic including the 
increase in remote working. It is also reflective of the increasing dependency on the IT infrastructure. The changes 
to the external environment that has evolved over the last 12 months with publicly reported increases in phishing 
and an increase in the sophistication of cyber-attacks are relevant to the scoring of this risk.  
 
Key Mitigations / Actions  
 

• Each legacy Council has a strong infrastructure and work continues to migrate to a single BCP core 
infrastructure 

• Physical premises security 
• Physical data security 
• Encryption 
• Regular scanning 
• Multi layered security approach 
• Active security incident response team 
• Constant review of latest threats and their vectors 
• Regular patching and upgrades 
• Dedicated cyber security officer 
• Monthly review of key metrics 
• Continue to run ‘internal’ Phishing tests and use the data to target training and awareness for staff 
• Forced Multi Factor Authentication introduced in September 2021 
• New Password criteria introduced to ensure complex password use 
• Restrictions on ability to transfer data out of Council applications/datasets to non-secure applications when 

being accessed through personal devices 
 
March 2022 
While we are seeing an increase in activity, the security measures in place around our infrastructure are performing 
as expected, though we are undertaking increased monitoring in some areas to supplement the measures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

As we fundamentally redesign and 
transition the enterprise architecture 
in partnership with our Strategic 
Implementation Partner (SIP) we 
will ensure that the infrastructure is 
built to leading edge security 
standards. 
 
March 2022 
Enhanced infrastructure security 
measures and internal monitoring 
capabilities are now available to us 
through our new enterprise 
licensing arrangements with 
Microsoft and these are being 
implemented and/or reviewed in 
order to deploy them most 
effectively against the current threat 
and risk matrix. 
 
 

 

 

 

1st April 

2024 

53



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF 
RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE  

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
  

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR9 Failure to 

maintain a safe 

and balanced 

budget for the 

delivery of 

services 

 

 

Risk Owner: Director of Finance 

Risk Information 

The 2022/23 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan covering the period to 31 March 2027 was approved by 
Council on 22 February 2022.  
 
The statutory section 25 report from the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) associated with the budget highlighted 
numerous risks each of significant value. Consequentially the CFO suggested an alternative budget configuration 
which he considered would better support the Council in 2022/23 and future years. Councillors duly considered and 
rejected the recommendations of the CFO.  
 
These risks were summarised in the 2022/23 budget report as follows. 
 

a) Reduction in the financial resilience of the council as a consequence of utilising £66.2m of the council’s 
reserves, including a projected £3.3m surplus from 2021/22, to support the 2021/22 and 2022/23 budgets of 
the Council. 

b) A projected funding gap for 2023/24 of £28.2m (excluding the impact of a 2.99% restriction in the proposed 
growth for both Adults and Children’s services). The Council’s plan being to generate significant additional 
revenue receipts from new commercial models. 

c) Councils are not permitted to operate with negative reserves. The growing deficit on the Dedicated Schools 

Grant (DSG) with specific reference to the High Needs Budget is projected to be £37.4m on 31/3/23 which 
will be higher than the £31.3m projected total general fund reserves (earmarked and unearmarked). 

Currently there is a statutory instrument in place which allows councils to ignore the deficit on the DSG but 
this expires on the 31 March 2023.  

d) An assumption that £61m of capital receipts will be generated to fund the councils £67.9m transformation 
programme. The budget assumed that a significant capital receipt will be delivered in 2022/23 from the 

securitisation of the beach hut income stream. 

e) Councils are not normally allowed to fund revenue expenditure from capital receipts. However specific 
Flexible Use of Capital Receipts legislation allows the council to do so where it specifically relates to the 

government’s definition of transformation and where a saving is clearly defined. The budget assumed this 
legislation would be extended to the 31 March 2025 as previously indicated by government despite the 

regulations having not been formally enacted beyond 31/3/22. The assumption was that the regulations 
when approved would be materially unaltered.  

f) Council will agree to the refinancing of its Urban Regeneration Company (BCP FuturePlaces) and issuing 
them with a working capital loan facility of circa £8m within the context of a new Business Plan. 

g) Council will deliver £4m in unitemised transformation savings and £5.4m in service based savings in 
2022/23. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

These risks are reviewed on a weekly 

basis by the Leader, Deputy Leader 
and a number of the key Officers of 
the Council. 

 

 

 

 

54



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF 
RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE  

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
  

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR9 Failure to 

maintain a safe 

and balanced 

budget for the 

delivery of 

services - 

continued 

 

Further Update 

Additional Risk: Since the budget was set, world events, have led to a cost of living crisis which will directly impact 

on the council. The Council will be particularly exposed in respect of rising energy costs, particularly electricity and 
gas, and contracts which include inflationary causes. The Spring Statement from the Chancellor indicated that the 

rate of inflation could be between 8% (CPI) and 10.3% (RPI) during 2022/23. 

A number of the matters above will be considered in further detailed reports to Cabinet, and subsequently Council. 

 June               2021/22 Financial Outturn 

 June               Medium Term Financial Plan Update 
 June               Home to School Transport 

 July                 Commercialisation of Beach Hut Assets through Special Purpose Vehicle 

 July                 BCP FuturePlaces Ltd – Regeneration Update 
 

Government announced on the 4/4/22 that the flexible use of capital receipts legislation was signed off by 
Government on 31 March 2022. It is included a change to the extent to which redundancy costs could be charged 
to transformation. 

BCP Council has been invited to take part in the government’s Delivering Better Value in SEND programme. There 
remains no indication that the statutory instruments will be extended. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE  

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
  

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
11 

Ability of the 

council to 

function and 

operate 

efficiently in the 

delivery of 

single services 

across the area 

of BCP 

 

 

Risk Owner:   Chief Executive  

Risk Information 
 

This risk was clarified with the title being reviewed and changed to ensure it captured the relevant detail. This risk 
recognises the complex reorganisation that created the new council from 1 April 2019, the need to provide 
harmonised services across the entire area and the ambitious transformation programme taking place with the 
on- going challenges of a pandemic. 
 
Key Mitigations / Actions 
 

 Training and development programme 

 Regular liaison between Cabinet and Corporate Management Board (CMB) 

 Mentoring 

 Bedding down period for service re-structures 

 Member’s toolkits 

 Six working groups of officers and members put in place to develop high-level delivery plans for the 
Corporate Strategy 

 A forward plan for harmonising the council’s major service strategy and policy documents  

 Cabinet’s forward plan has been agreed 

 Agreement of Corporate Strategy, People Strategy, Equalities Policy and Action plan leading to delivery 
plan will give some certainty 

 Corporate Strategy delivery plan actions reviewed by Cabinet and CMB to align with ambitions of the Big 
Plan and to reflect impact of Covid on priorities 

 The Overview and Scrutiny function has an associated skills and knowledge development programme in 
place to support members and ensure effective implementation of the function, which was developed in 
consultation with the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) as the body of excellence for scrutiny support to 
councils.  

 Extensive engagement with the Local Government Association (LGA) to provide support for members as 
required, including making arrangements for mentoring and coaching and the LGA Peer Challenge in Nov 
2021 

 Regular internal communication 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

• Continued monitoring of 

the harmonisation 
legacy policy and 
strategy documents 

• Complete a LGR 
stocktake of progress 
three years in, by April 
2022 and consider if 
this needs to remain in 
the corporate risk 
register. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

56



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
12 

Failure to 

achieve 

appropriate 

outcomes and 

quality of 

service for 

young people 

 

 

Risk Owner:  Corporate Director of Children’s Services 

Risk Information  
 

Ofsted inspection of BCP Council’s Children’s Services confirms the safety and quality of services is inadequate 

which indicates significant risk of the service not providing safe or quality services to children, young people and 
their families  

An improvement plan is in place which is being managed and supported by the newly revised Improvement 

Board. Senior Leadership Team in Children’s Services, the Department for Education, Chief Executive and 

Cabinet members are monitoring and enabling progress and keeping accountable officers on task. 

The likelihood that demands on children’s services will increase more than predicted due to post covid impact and 

economic issues taking more families into poverty.  

 
Key Mitigations / Actions 

 Develop robust early help services to drive down demand for Children’s Social Care 
• Development of further placements in house and efficient commissioning activities to meet needs  
• Assessments and visiting happens within statutory requirements managed by Quality and Performance 

structures.  
• The quality of the casework is audited and supported to increase quality of work.  
• Workloads are managed across the directorate to ensure caseload management  
• Improvement plan is managed at pace with partners 
• Workforce R&R strategy to be in place to build and stabilise the work force. 

•  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Further Actions  

 

 Improvement plan in place 
managed by the Improvement 
Board  

 The SEND action plan which 
also has an Improvement 
Board 

 Intensive work to achieve 
stronger  staff engagement 
and support 

 Improvement programme 
supported by Hampshire 
County Council (rated 
outstanding for children’s 
services), through the SLIP 

 
There is no target date for this risk as 

it is        considered a continuous intrinsic 

risk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
13 

Failure to 

deliver the 

transformation 

programme 

 

 

Risk Owner:  Corporate Director Transformation 

Risk Information 

The future efficiency and effectiveness of the Council, our reputation as a service provider and our ability to 
continue to deliver a balanced financial position within the Medium Term Financial Plan horizon are 

fundamentally linked to the delivery of our transformation objectives. Delivering a programme with the complexity, 
scale and pace       as set out by the Council will be challenging on a number of levels including: Identifying the correct 
partner(s) to support the delivery of the programme; effectively engaging the organisation in the vision of the 
future; committing       to the achievement of challenging benefits realisation targets; ensuring the appropriate level of 
funding to support the resources required to deliver the programme. 
 

Key Mitigations 
 

• Strong design and engagement with key stakeholders to the business case 
• Identification of funding sources and the development of a Financial Strategy to support the programme 
• Strong identification and specification of our requirements while reflecting the extremely 

dynamic technology/data environment within which we will need to deliver the programme 
• Robust and effective procurement process to identify and engage the right partner(s) to support the Council 

in the delivery of the programme 
• Effective programme management and performance monitoring of the delivery. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

The programme, it’s governance 

architecture and all workstreams have 

now been fully designed and are being 

implemented. There is very strong 

coordination of all workstreams and 

effective integration between the 

Strategic Implementation Partner and 

BCP teams working across the 

programme. The benefits are being 

constantly reviewed and reinforced 

across all aspects of the programme. 

March 2022 

All workstreams are now live and 

good progress is being made across 

the whole programme. On the advice 

of the Corporate Peer Review Team, 

the benefits profile has been reviewed 

and changes incorporated into the 

MTFP adopted by the Council in 

February 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1st April 

2024 

 

 

 

58



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
14 

Continuity of 

Public Health 

arrangements 

and evolution of 

outbreak 

management 

plan 

 

 

Risk Owner:  Chief Executive  

Risk Information 

On 21 February the Prime Minister announced the new Living with COVID strategy. This means that the previous 

approach to testing, contact tracing and breaking chains of transmission due to COVID-19 infection is no longer 

considered necessary. Instead because of the protection afforded by the vaccination programme universal access 
to testing ended 1 April, along with contact tracing. Support will continue to be offered by local public health teams 

to higher risk settings where outbreaks occur, but this is to be scaled back considerably, as part of a return to 
business as usual health protection work. There is no longer a requirement for local outbreak management plans. 

Instead COVID-19 is to be considered like any other respiratory virus, with general public health guidance for 
settings replacing the previous test and trace approach. This means that Local Authorities will no longer be 

responsible for chairing and running the COVID-19 health protection board and local outbreak engagement boards. 
However, we remain ready to stand back up should the current situation change.   

Key mitigations 
 

 New updated guidance for schools, healthcare and care settings about how to live with COVID-19 has been 

produced – overall the aim is to move to treating this infection like any other respiratory infection 
 Widespread access to testing has been replaced with general guidance to stay home and not mix with 

people if symptomatic – no requirement to seek a test to confirm 

 Continued vaccination offer for COVID-19 – including further roll outs of booster doses for older, vulnerable 

adults and clinically vulnerable 5-11 year olds 

 Ongoing surveillance nationally via ONS infection survey, supported by genomic analysis of PCR testing 
undertaken in NHS inpatient settings 

 Ongoing provision of lateral flow testing for people providing frontline patient or direct personal care to 
vulnerable groups  

 Health Protection Board and local outbreak management plans now stood down, with COVID-19 now dealt 
with via local health protection network 

 BCP Council continues to hold a contingency budget for outbreak response, should the situation change  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Although infections are at a very high 

level currently, with an increase in 

hospital admissions, the severity of 
disease is much less than previous 

waves. Infections are forecast to fall 
over the next 2-3 weeks as the 

current Omicron BA.2 wave recedes. 
The public health team is continuing 

to run its day response team for 

COVID-19 to support local high risk 
settings with risk assessment and 

changes to the guidance announced 
by Government. We continue to hold 

a contingency in reserve that can be 
deployed for a step up in outbreak 

response, should the current situation 

change e.g. with identification of any 
new variant. Currently although 

disruption to frontline services is 
considerable, the overall risk in terms 

of increased mortality and morbidity is 
decreasing and is not considered as 
serious as previous waves.  

 

   

 

 

 

 

  

59



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 

REF RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
15 

Effective people 

strategy 
 

 

Risk Owner:  Corporate Director, Transformation & Resources 

Risk Information 

The Council's People Strategy was developed and launched during 2019/2020 - immediately prior to the impact of 
the Covid-19 pandemic. A significant amount of the anticipated work within the strategy has been impacted by the 
need to refocus on the support and wellbeing of the workforce during the response to the pandemic. As we emerge 
from the full response phase of the pandemic, focus is now shifting to rechecking the key elements of the Strategy 
against the changed workforce/workplace and the wider transformation programme objectives, including a very 
strong focus on the identification and development of the culture for the Council and its translation into a 
performance management framework for the organisation and its people. 
 

March 2022 

With the decision to defer the implementation of the Pay & Reward programme until April 2024, the organisation is 

exposing itself to increased risks with regard to equal pay for longer than had been anticipated or planned for. In 

addition, the decision presents significant difficulties in staff morale with some colleagues being asked to tolerate 

the inequity caused by the situation being extended materially. 

In conjunction with the increase in the cost of living, as well as the enhanced mobility around many employment 

models as a result of the Pandemic, the Council is experiencing difficulties in many areas (severe in some services) 

around recruiting and/or retaining experienced staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Strong analysis and reaction 
to the key themes emerging 
from the Employee 
Engagement Survey 

 Clear correlation between 
the key themes of the 
People Strategy and the 
design and implementation 
of the transformation 
programme 

 Develop stronger 

communications capabilities 

within our management 

structures 

March 2022 

Undertake a review of high risk 

recruitment/retention issues across 

the organisation and review options 

for mitigating them, pending the full 

implementation of Pay & Reward. 

Undertake a review of high Equal Pay 

risk across the organisation and 

review options for mitigating them, 

pending the full implementation of Pay 

& Reward 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1st April 

2024 

 

60



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 
ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

 
CR 
17 

Risk to 

Reputation of 

Place & Council 

if summer 

arrangements 

are not 

managed 

 

 

Risk Owner:  Chief Operating Officer 

Risk Information 

Following the easing of the lockdown last year and the unprecedented numbers of visitors along with residents to 
our parks, open spaces and beaches the Council faced significant strain on its public services and a major 
incident was declared through the Local Resilience Forum (LRF).  

The risk for the Council facing spring and summer in 2022 is that BCP is a primary tourist destination that has seen 

ongoing increase in visitors year on year. With some residual nervousness on international travel, economic 
climate and a large events calendar for summer 2022, visitor numbers are expected to increase. Given this context 

it is likely that the BCP area will face at least as many visitors as last year during warm weather, and it is important 
for the reputation of the Council that our services are stepped up to manage the impact of the visitor numbers and 

ease potential tensions with residents, to generate a positive and welcoming experience and establish BCP as a 

world-class destination, and to minimise negative publicity.   There are also related risks that the Council's 
programme of events and hospitality offer provided through Festival Coast Live, and supported events, add to the 

complexity of what is being managed and the specific risks associated with this need to also be managed 
appropriately.  

  

Key Risk Mitigations  

• Cabinet decided that following the success of seasonal response delivery in 2021 and ongoing predicted 
demand, further support would be given to seasonal response plans for 2022 

• Following budget approval in February 2022, a commitment of £1.69 million funding being allocated to enhance 
resources, on top of core service delivery. 

• Continuation of the Multi-Agency Command Centre with clear multi-agency plan and associated resource.  
• Weekly forward-looking meetings within BCP senior leadership are in place. 
• Partnership agreements are in place with key partners such as Dorset Police and further support is being sought 

from health colleagues.  
• Established Safety Advisory Group and Licensing Committee to take an overview of relevant events and 

activities.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Implementation of the investment 
outlined in the Summer response 
plan including recruitment of staff  

• Ongoing analysis and oversight 
through the Multi-
Agency command centre and 
planning.  

• Weekly tactical summer response 
review to assess risk and agree 
further actions required  

 

 

 

 

 

15/09/2022 

61



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 
ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
18 

Failure in 

customer 

interface 

 

 

Risk Owner : Corporate Director, Transformation & Resources 

 

Risk Information 

While full scale transformation of the Council is underway, there is a risk that our current customer service 

capabilities, capacity, systems and processes fail to provide the level of responsiveness that our communities and 

residents expect. This risk is specifically focused on the short-term capabilities of the Council. 

 

Full baselining and data monitoring of the corporate customer contact centre is now possible with the significant 

upgrade to the Council’s legacy telephony arrangements haven been undertaken during the Covid pandemic. Data  

is currently being produced and analysed in order to provide the basis of identifying and supporting a range of 

intervention and improvement projects over the course of the next three months. 

March 2022 

Data from November 2021 has now been baselined and shows a c25% increase in the volume of telephone 

contact from before the Pandemic. This clearly demonstrates a faster and more significant shift in channel between 

face to face activity to telephone through (and now beyond) the Pandemic than was expected, and while this was 

manageable during the Pandemic with the reallocation of staff from other parts of the organisation, with the return 

to normal Council operations it has resulted in issues within the Corporate Customer Contact Centre. 

Specifically, we are seeing enormous demand within the Council Tax and SVPP service areas (the initial contact 

and triaging for which are handled by the Corporate Customer Contact Centre) as a result of not just the impact on 

people of the Pandemic but also the extraordinary demands placed on that service by the successive grant 

initiatives released from central government intended to support our residents through the Pandemic and its 

consequences. 

Additional funding has been provided to the Customer Contact Centre on a transitional basis in the budget adopted 

by the Council in February 2022. This funding has been provided to increase the capacity of the channels(lines) 

into the Centre as well as additional agency staff to support the volume of telephone contact the Council is 

receiving. 

We are now monitoring performance of all service lines within the Corporate Customer Contact Centre and are 

seeing improvements in all but one area as a result of the interventions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To be defined once analysis is 

complete. Interventions are likely to 

include significant increase in 

available resources across all 

channels in order to support 

improvements in outcomes pending 

the full transformation programme 

outcomes. 

 

March 2022 

Continue to deploy 

additional/transitional resources and 

monitor improved performance while 

continuing the transformation 

programme activity to support the 

design and delivery of a new Digital 

Front Door for the Council. 

 

 

 

1st April 

2024 

62



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 
ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
19 

Failure to 

determine 

planning 

applications 

within statutory 

timescales, or 

within agreed 

extensions of 

time (EOT) 

 

 

Risk Owner : Chief Operations Officer 

Risk Information 

The risks associated with CR19 relate both to the reputation of the Council and being put into special measures by 
the Government if performance falls below 60% for Major planning applications and 70% for non-major planning 
applications. 

In respect of risk of Government intervention (which would have very serious reputational impacts on the Council 
as well as seeing local decision making powers potentially removed for a period), the Planning Service is presently 
performing as follows: 

Category Government 
Intervention level 

2021/2022 Q4 2021/2022 

Majors 60% 83% 96% 

Minors 70% 79% 83% 

Others 70% 85% 94% 

   

As can be shown from the above statistics, there is no risk of the Council being put into special measures on the back of 
its planning applications performance. The performance in the last quarter of 2021/2022 is noteworthy and provides a 
solid platform to continue this level into 2022/2023 and henceforth.  

It is recognised that the above statistics include use of Extensions of Times as per Government guidelines. Whilst this is 
accepted at Government level and can be a pragmatic way of engaging with customers to resolve issues, the Council 
wants to ensure the Planning service shifts to a service that wherever possible makes decisions within the statutory 
timeframes of 8 or 13 weeks and significantly reduce use of EOTs. The benefits of this are wide ranging f rom overall 
customer satisfaction, confidence in the system, an excellent work environment for staff and one that is able to respond 
to the need to support economic growth in an efficient and decisive way. 

Key Mitigations 

To oversee the delivery of this objective, a Planning Improvement Board has been established. This includes a number 
of workstreams all framed towards providing the best possible planning service in terms of speed and quality of 
outcomes. The workstreams overseen by the Planning Improvement Board have been instrumental in the upward 
trajectory of performance as shown above and a series of further work is already underway to shift the service to one 
that operates within statutory timeframe. This work includes: 

 Recruitment – new planners are being brought in to add capacity 

 Single Planning System – This is expected to be launched in July and will be a key harmonisation milestone for 
the service and enable the team to be more agile to workflow and demand management 

 Interim structure in place to organise the staff into supported groups with clear lines of control 

 Decisive rules of engagement with customers on quality of information required, acceptance of amended plans 
and ways of working 

 Use of agency staff to add further capacity to bring the workloads within deliverable tolerance 

 Improved communications with customers 

 New performance management framework introduced to focus on outputs  

 New streamlined Section 106 process to be introduced 

 Full process review to support new system focused on the most efficient ways of working. 
 

 

 

     

 

 

63



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 

ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
19 

Failure to 

determine 

planning 

applications 

within statutory 

timescales, or 

within agreed 

extensions of 

time (EOT) - 

continued 

 

 

These measures will continue to be implemented in the first half of 2022/2023 to drive forward the objective of operating 

within statutory timescales and significantly reduce the use of EOTs. This will in turn continue to build the Council’s 

reputation in respect of its Planning Service and support wider objectives around community and investor confidence, 

supporting economic growth and the sustainable planning of the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

64



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 
ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
20 

Failure to 

adequately 

deliver the 

ambitions of the 

climate 

emergency 

declaration 

 

 

Risk Owner : Chief Operations Officer 

Risk Information 

A detailed risk assessment is being developed and agreed but the information below represents a summary of this draft 

document. 

The International Panel on Climate Change's 5th report has robustly concluded that climate change is unequivocally real 

and caused by human activity such as the burning of fossil fuels and destruction of habitats releasing greenhouse gases 

in unprecedented levels and limiting the earth's ability to reabsorb them.  

The UK Government has committed to achieving ‘net zero’ greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, and a challenge of this 
scale will require transformative change to the UK economy. BCP Council has declared a climate and ecological 
emergency committing the Council and Region to decarbonising the economy and society by 2030 and 2050 
respectively. 

There are a number of departments across BCP Council that are central to the response to climate change. However , 
the all-encompassing nature of achieving net zero means that all Council bodies, including departments and arm’s -length 
bodies, have a role to play. In order to be more resilient to the threat posed by climate change – in addition to meeting 
the challenges of achieving net zero – it is vital that all of BCP and its organisations effectively manage climate 

change risks. 

Climate change risks should not be considered in isolation and should be clearly integrated into the strategy of an 
organisation. It is vital for organisations to recognise that the potential impacts of climate change are not only to do with 
the physical effects on people and the environment, but also to do with the effects of the transition to a changing climate 
and the adaptation and mitigation work involved. Similarly, the impacts of climate change should not only be considered 
as long term risks. 

  Physical risks: 

 Acute: The physical risks of climate change can affect organisations in different ways. Specific weather-related 
events such as floods will have a significant impact on infrastructure, causing damage to buildings and wide -
scale disruption to service delivery.  

 Chronic: Meanwhile, the more gradual impact of rising temperatures, such as sea level rise and coastal change, 

will pose risks to certain communities and organisations, and changes in temperature and rainfall will place 
additional pressures on infrastructure. 

 Indirect: As well as direct damage costs, both acute and chronic physical risks can also lead to indirect 
economic and social impacts through supply chain disruptions, subsequent impacts from infrastructure damage 
(for example, lack of transport, communication, manufacturing) or market shifts (such as increases in insurance 
premiums, changes in the need for government support, consumer attitudinal and expectation changes).  

 

Physical risks mitigations in place: 

 Acute: Some service areas have well established strategies and plans which seek to incorporate climate change 
projections to ensure service and business continuity such as Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management and 

Transport. However without quantified local climate change risks, no standard way of developing adaptation 
plans and no centrally agreed risk profile that we need to mitigate or adapt to, there is likely to be large variance 
in the completeness of responses across the organisation.  

 Chronic: As strategies and plans are not currently mandated to include climate risk planning there is no 
consistent or regular way of ensuring their completeness or relevance. As such we cannot be confident on the 
severity of the risk we currently face and whether existing emergency management and resilience forums can 
scale to the extent of the physical risks of extreme weather events predicted by climate change into the future.  

 Indirect: it is currently unknown the extent to which our supply chains, the broader economic environment or our 
local market are vulnerable to climate change. 
 

 

 

 

 Quantify/ qualify climate risk 
through a climate change risk 
assessment across key thematic/ 
service areas such as 
Environment, Flood & Coastal 
Risk, Transport, Business, Health, 
Homes, Buildings 

 Ensure Councillors and Senior 
Officers are aware of the Climate 
Risk, understand its 

consequences and are actively 
engaged in mitigation and 
adaptation planning 

 Integrate risk and vulnerabilities 
into service plans, Business 
Continuity Plans and Health Plans 
to identify vulnerable and sensitive 
receptors 

 Act to reduce exposure, severity 
and the vulnerabilities of sensitive 
receptors within Services and the 

Region 

 Ensure Local Resilience Forum 
understand severity and likelihood 
of climate risks and has plans for 
all eventualities 

 Enhance our sustainable 
procurement policy to ensure it 
incorporates the risk of supply 
chain disruption from climate 
change 

 Work with Business Community to 
understand and enhance the 

resilience of the local economy 
and supply chains feeding it 

 Review existing plans and 
strategies to ensure consistency 
with the climate declarations, 
make changes where appropriate 
and consensus allows  

 Develop a climate policy, and 
climate strategy that will make 
explicit the transformation required 
and the impact to other policies, 

strategies, plans and programmes 

 

 

 

 

65



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 
ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
21 

Impact of 

global events 

causing 

pressure on 

BCP Council & 

increase in 

service 

requirements 

 

 

Risk Owner : Chief Operations Officer 

Risk Information  

The war in Ukraine has led to a government policy for settling refugees in the UK.  A significant and uncapped 
amount of Ukrainians will be moving into the BCP area at pace - an urgent multi-agency response is required to 
support this which will have short, medium and long term resource implications on local services. 
 

Risks include arrivals unsupported, safeguarding risks not mitigated, inappropriate housing placements enabled, 

resulting impact on services not realised, reputational risk of not implementing what is required, unbudgeted strain 

on services. 

 

Mitigations: 

 Multi-agency partnership working and governance framework in place, communication channels in place 
e.g. briefings, webpages, dedicated staff team established, links with government agencies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Swift implementation underway of 
guidance for immediate arrivals, 
establishment of ongoing wrap 
around support, continued 
communication with partners and 
community required.  
 
Consider seconding additional staff if 
required.  Complete recruitment to 
dedicated refugee posts to ensure 
ongoing and consistent resourcing 
 

 

 

 

31 March 

2023 

66



    APPENDIX 1 

 

 

RISK 
REF 

RISK DESCRIPTION 

G
R

O
S

S
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

RISK INFORMATION & KEY MITIGATIONS IN PLACE 

N
E

T
 R

IS
K

 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

FURTHER ACTIONS 

 

T
A

R
G

E
T

 R
IS

K
 

S
C

O
R

E
 

 

DATE TO 
ACHIEVE 

TARGET 

SCORE 

CR 
22 

Failure of local 

care market to 

meet 

increasing 

demand.  

 

 

Risk Owner:  Chief Executive  

Risk Information: 

Adult Social Care 

Despite additional care capacity it is challenging to identify sufficient care resource to meet the escalating demand 

for hospital discharge and the capacity shortfall in the care sector is further exacerbated by the increased needs of 
individuals leaving hospital.  

There is a lack of workforce capacity within the local care market, and this is also a national issue. This is 
exacerbated by Covid, staff seeking alternative employment and recruitment difficulties.  

The lack of market capacity impacts: hospital discharge, drives up the cost of care placements and limits choice for 
individuals. Current mitigations in place include: 

 Contract Monitoring and the Service Improvement Team provide personalised support to providers and 

provides an early insight to any escalating challenges which specific providers may be facing 

 Additional capacity added through rapid response and block contract purchasing during the pandemic 

 Care home strategy and extra care housing strategies have been developed 

 Staff tasks re-prioritised to ensure speedy completion of covid checklists for care home suspensions 

 Recruitment campaigns are operational and targeted at domiciliary care across multi-media platforms, 
including social media, radio and editorial promotions under the ‘Proud to Care’ banner 

 Free childcare for BCP framework domiciliary care providers is available in school holidays 

 Free parking permits for BCP framework providers have been issued for use in difficult parking areas across 
the BCP Council area and free bike hire is available to care staff as an alternative to driving 

 

 

 

 

 

 Undertake market 

sustainability review 

 Undertake cost of care 

reviews to determine fair price 

for care locally 

 Recruitment initiatives, including 
recruitment from abroad and the 
ICS scholarship programme 

 Voluntary sector proposals are in 
development with the Community 
Action Network to have a Hospital 
Hub and deploy volunteers on the 
wards.  This will support simple 
discharges where complex care 
packages are not required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 

2022 

 

 

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank

68



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update (including Audit 
Charter and Audit Plan for 2022/23) 

Meeting date  14 April 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report sets out the Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan for 
2022/23. Approval of these documents by the Audit and 

Governance Committee is a requirement of the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

The report also details progress made on delivery of the 2021/22 

Audit Plan for the period January to March (inclusive) 2022. The 
report highlights that: 

 Thirteen audit assignments have been completed (twelve 
‘Reasonable’ and one  ‘Partial’ audit opinions); 

 Twenty three audit assignments are in progress; 

 Implementation of audit recommendations is satisfactory; 

 All recommendations and suggestions arising from a recent 
CIPFA validation of a self-assessment against the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) have been addressed. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Audit & Governance Committee are asked to: 

 approve the Internal Audit Charter and agree that the Chair 
signs the document to record this approval (this may be a 
virtual sign off using email); 

 approve the Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 including the 
detailed breakdown of quarter 1 audits; 

 note the 2022/23 budget for the Internal Audit service 
which has been previously approved by Council; 

 note progress made and issues arising on the delivery of 
the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To comply with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 

To communicate progress on the delivery of the 2021/22 Internal 

Audit Plan. 
 

To ensure the Audit & Governance Committee are fully informed of 
the significant issues arising from the work of Internal Audit during 
the quarter. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive   

Report Authors Nigel Stannard 

69

Agenda Item 9



Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

01202 128784  

  nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Decision and Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) provide a consistent framework for 

Internal Audit Services operating across public sector. The Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards require Internal Audit to:  

 periodically review its Charter; 

 produce a risk based Audit Plan; and to 

 obtain approval for the Internal Audit service budget. 

 

2. To comply with the PSIAS, the Audit & Governance Committee should approve the 

Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan annually (in this case for 2022-23), and also note 

the Internal Audit service budget (as previously approved by Council). 

 

3. This report also details Internal Audit’s progress against the 2021/22 Audit Plan for the 

period January 2022 to March 2022 inclusive and reports the audit opinion of the 

assignments completed during this period. 

 
4. The report also provides an update on any significant issues arising and implementation 

of internal audit recommendations by management. 

Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 

5. The Internal Audit Charter (Appendix A) describes the purpose, authority, responsibilities 

and scope of the Council’s Internal Audit Section.  

 
6. An annual review has been undertaken of the Charter as required by the PSIAS.  

 
7. Following a CIPFA validation of Internal Audit’s self-assessment against the PSIAS and 

resultant recommendations, the following changes have been made to the Charter:  

 Added PSIAS ‘core principles’ which articulate internal audit effectiveness . 

 Defined ‘senior management’ as Corporate Management Board (CMB) and Directors 
Strategy Group (DSG). 

 Included, more explicitly, the inherent conflict of interest risk of the Chief Audit 
Executive (Head of Audit and Management Assurance) having responsibility for non-
audit functions. 
 

8. The PSIAS require that a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) which 

covers all aspects of the internal audit activity is developed and maintained. Whilst a 

quality assurance process existed it was not previously set out in a formal document, this 

document has now been included as Annexe 5 in the Internal Audit Charter (Appendix 

A). 

 
9. The Charter has also been revised to clarify that Low Priority Recommendations (actual / 

potential minor implications for achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a minor 

effect on service delivery) will not be routinely followed up by Internal Audit, however, 

action taken to implement may be assessed on an ad hoc basis.  
 

70

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


10. The Audit & Governance Committee are asked to approve the amended Charter. 

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 

11. The draft 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan (high level allocation of resource and delivery 

approach) was previously presented to the Audit & Governance Committee on the 13 
January 2022 for comments and feedback. The summary BCP Internal Audit Plan 

2022/23 is reproduced below, with comparison to the 2021/22 original Audit Plan:   

 
 

 

12. The ‘Core Audit & Assurance Work’ (1,585 days) is detailed further at Appendix B and 

shows all planned work across each individual Service Area. A further breakdown of the 

audits that are planned to be carried out in quarter 1 of 2022/23 is shown at Appendix C. 

 

AUDIT ACTIVITY  
2021/22 

PLAN DAYS 

2022/23 

PLAN DAYS 
BCP 

Difference 

(Days) 

Difference 

% 

CORE AUDIT & ASSURANCE WORK        

HIGH LEVEL RISKS 700 700   

KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS 230 200   

KEY ASSURANCE FUNCTIONS 195 195   

COUNTER FRAUD RISKS 160 160   

SCHOOLS 60 60   

PLANNING, ADVICE, FOLLOW UP 270 270   

TOTAL 1,615 1,585 -30 -2% 

OTHER AUDIT WORK     

INVESTIGATIONS 100 100   

CONTINGENCY WORK 70 50   

GRANT CERTIFICATION WORK 45 45   

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS COMPLIANCE 

 

 

20 20 

 

  

BCP TRANSFORMATION & EFFICIENCY 60 60   

TOTAL 295 275 -20 -7% 

CORPORATE ASSURANCE WORK     

CORPORATE FRAUD 125 125   

FREE EARLY EDUCATON FUNDING AUDITS 70 70   

OTHER CORPORATE ASSURANCE WORK 20 20   

 
TOTAL 215 215 - - 

GOVERNANCE WORK 
 

   

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT & LIAISON 25 30   

MEMBER LIAISON  65 65   

AGS (Annual Governance Statement) 75 75   

TOTAL 165 170 +5 +3% 

IA SERVICE MANAGEMENT WORK 
 

   

MANAGEMENT & MEETINGS 250 250   

 AUDIT DEVELOPMENT  80 120   

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 60 60   

TOTAL 390 430 +40 +10% 

NON PRODUCTIVE TIME     

LEAVE 505 525   

SICK\DOWNTIME 55 55   

TRAINING & CPD 160 155   

VACANCY CONTINGENCY 50 40   

TOTAL 770 775 -5 -1% 

TOTAL DAYS 3,450 3,450 0 - 

71



13. Internal Audit have also produced an Anti-Fraud & Corruption Work Plan (see Appendix 

D) which details planned work to prevent, detect and investigate fraud and corruption 

during 2022/23.  

 
14. Consultation is being finalised with Corporate and Service Directors and External Audit 

on the Audit Plan.   

 
15. The proposed work in the 2022/23 Audit Plan has been designed to enable the Head of 

Audit & Management Assurance to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s control environment. The Audit Plan has been designed to 

be very flexible to take account of BCP services transformation and other change which 

may occur across the organisation. 

 

16. Monitoring of the Audit Plan completion and any changes will be brought to this 

committee on a quarterly basis. Audit & Governance Committee are asked to agree the 

proposed 2022/23 Audit Plan.   

Delivery of the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan – Quarter 4 review 

17. Thirteen audit assignments have been fully completed in this quarter of 2021/22 (Jan-

Mar 22) as outlined below. 

 
2021/22 Audits Completed 

 

 Service Area Audit 
Assurance 

Opinion 

Recommendations 

High Med Low 

1 Adult Social Care 
Direct Payments (counter 
fraud) 

Reasonable 0 0 1 

2 Children’s Services 
Business Planning & 

Performance      Management 
Reasonable 0 2 4 

3 Children’s Services Capital Programme Partial 2 4 0 

4 Children’s Services Somerford Primary School  Reasonable 0 4 2 

5 
Children’s Services Corpus Christi Primary 

School  
Reasonable 0 4 1 

6 Children’s Services Winchelsea School Reasonable 0 3 3 

7 
Destination & 
Culture 

Russell Cotes Income 
Collection  

Reasonable 0 5 6 

8 Finance 
Business Planning & 

Performance Management  
Reasonable 0 2 0 

9 Finance 
Main Accounting System & 
Financial Management 

Reasonable 0 2 3 

10 Finance Risk Management Reasonable 0 3 1 

11 Finance Creditors Reasonable 0 7 2 

12 HR & OD Human Resources (KAF) Reasonable 0 2 2 

13 Finance Housing Benefits Reasonable  0 1 0 

Total Recommendations 2 39 25 

Key: 

 Substantial Assurance  - There is a sound control framework which is designed to achieve 
the service objectives, with key controls being consistently applied.   

 Reasonable Assurance  - Whilst there is basically a sound control framework, there are 
some weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk.  

 Partial Assurance -There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting service 
objectives at risk 

 Minimal Assurance - The control framework is generally poor and as such service objectives 

are at significant risk 

72



 

18. There was one ‘Partial’ assurance audit report issued during the quarter: 

 
(1) Children’s Services – Capital Programme 

Eight recommendations (1 high & 7 medium priority) were made in this Audit Report 

which was given a ‘Partial Assurance’ audit opinion. The following issues were found: 

 Children’s Services Capital Programme Strategy: The strategy does not include key 

elements such as aims, objectives, how it links to the Council’s Corporate Capital 

Programme, Big Plan & other strategies such as the Corporate Strategy and the 

Financial Strategy, it does not clearly define the roles and responsibilities of how the 

capital programme will be governed, monitored, or operated (High Priority) 

 Programme and Project Management of Children’s Capital Projects : There is currently 

no Children’s Capital Programme Manager in place to oversee the delivery of the 

Children’s Services Capital Programme and there is no capital programme/project 

methodology in place for the identification, specification and approval of capital 

projects (High Priority) 

 Children’s Services Capital Programme Board: Frequency and attendance of 

meetings were not always as per the terms of reference and the minutes of meetings 

did not detail actions or decisions made (Medium Priority) 

 Maintained School’s Condition Surveys: There does not appear to be a single officer 

responsible for the overview of the School’s Condition Survey Programme. The 

budget forecasting process and frequency of surveys also require improvement (3 X 

Medium Priority). 

Recommendations to address the issues have all been agreed with management 

 

19. There were no ‘Minimal’ assurance audit reports issued during the quarter.  The status of 

other audits in progress (Jan-Mar 2022) is outlined below: 
 

2021/22 Audits In Progress 

 
Service Area  Audit  Progress 

1 IT & IS 
ICT Network Security & Business 
Continuity 

Draft Report 

2 Development Estates - Asset Management (KAF) Draft Report 

3 Housing 
Bournemouth Neighbourhood Housing 
Assets (Health & Safety Compliance)   

Draft Report 

4 Finance 
Serious & Organised Crime (counter 
fraud) 

Draft Report 

5 Adult Social Care ICT (KAF)  Draft Report 

6 Children’s Services Children’s Residential Services Fieldwork 

7 Finance Debtors (2021/22/23) Fieldwork 

8 Finance Council Tax and NDR (2021/22/23) Fieldwork 

9 
Customer & Business 
Delivery 

Facilities Management - Asset 
Management (follow up) 

Fieldwork 

10 Development (Finance) 
Project & Programme Management – 
Smarter Places Programme 

Fieldwork 

11 Finance  Procurement Cards  Fieldwork 

12 Public Health Retained Portions Grant Review Fieldwork 

13 Destination & Culture Project & Programme Management Fieldwork 

73



Audits marked 2021/22/23 in the table above signify that fieldwork  is part of 2021/22 and 2022/23 

audit plan years  

2021/22 Audit Plan Changes 

 Service Area Audit Comment/rationale 

1 Adult Social Care Partnerships 
Postponed until 2022/23, resource 

allocated to higher risk audits 

2 Children’s Services Public Law Outline Area subject to recent Ofsted review 

3 Children’s Services Virtual School Area subject to recent Ofsted review 

4 
Destination & 
Culture 

Cash Office and Arcade 
Income 

Postponed until 2022/23, resource 
allocated to higher risk audits 

5 
Transport and 
Engineering  

Health & Safety 
Postponed until 2022/23, to concentrate 

on Construction, Design and 
Management (CDM) arrangements 

6 Housing  Non-rental income 
Following an analytical review, resource 

allocated to higher risk audits 

7 Finance  Payroll 

Postponed until 2022/23 as service under 
review. Note assurance gained from 

some 2020/21/22 work and full  
recommendations implementation 

8 Housing 
Housing Tenancy – Data 
Matching 

Postponed until 2022/23 due to proposed 
changes in BCP housing stock 

management 

9 Communities  Port Health 
Postponed until 2022/23 due to awaiting 
clarification of legislative requirements 

from Government 

10 Finance Business Continuity 

Position statement to be produced to 
support the Annual Governance 

Statement, full audit to be carried out in 
quarter one 2022/23 

 

Significant Issues Arising and Other Work 

20. Work is being completed on the compilation of the Council's Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS) for 2021/22 which will be presented to Corporate Management Board 

in May and then reported to this committee in July (along with the Council’s Statement of 

Accounts). 

 

14 Children’s Services Safeguarding Fieldwork 

15 Adult Social Care Safeguarding Fieldwork 

16 
Customer & Business 
Delivery 

Blue Badges Renewal and Counter Fraud 
Review 

Fieldwork 

17 
Finance Social Services Financial Assessments 

(2021/22/23) 
Fieldwork 

18 Housing Housing Rents (KFS) Fieldwork 

19 Children’s Services Care Leavers Payments Fieldwork 

20 Children’s Services SEND Fieldwork 

21 Law & Governance  Sham Marriages Fieldwork 

22 Finance Business Continuity Fieldwork 

23 Communities Partnerships (core KAF) Fieldwork 

74



21. Internal Audit is currently carrying out internal audits of the Charter Trustees of 

Bournemouth and the Charter Trustees of Poole as requested to support their Annual 

Governance and Accountability Returns (AGAR).  

 
22. Time has been spent during the quarter on providing support and advice on the Finance 

workstream which is focused on evolving/transforming the BCP Council Finance function 

to create a more efficient, technology enabled, ‘future fit’ Finance service. 

 

23. As reported to Audit & Governance Committee previously, Internal Audit have been  

working on an action plan to address the four recommendations and four suggestions 

arising from a recent CIPFA validation of our self-assessment against the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

 

24. The action plan has now been fully completed with the last recommendation and 

suggestion being implemented as detailed below: 

 Ref Recommendation Action 

R1 Refer to the core principles and define ‘senior 
management’ in the Charter 

Included in revised Audit 
Charter presented to A&G 

Committee 14/4/22 

Ref Suggestion Action 

S1 Set out the conflict of interest risk inherent in 
the Chief Audit Executive (Head of Audit and 
Management Assurance) having non-audit 
functions in the Charter 

Included in revised Audit 
Charter presented to A&G 

Committee 14/4/22 

 

25. Following the internal promotion of an Auditor to an Audit Manager the subsequent 

vacancy is currently being recruited to at a slightly higher level following a minor service 

restructure. Further minor amendments to the structure maybe required depending on 

the outcome of this process.  

 
Recommendations Implementation 

 

26. All recommendations followed up during the period (in line with the agreed action plan) 

were found to have been satisfactorily implemented by management or subject to 

pragmatic revisions to previously agreed dates, on a risk basis. 

 

27. No recommendations are required to be escalated to Audit & Governance Committee for 

non-implementation. 

 

28. The Escalation Policy for Non-Implemented Internal Audit Recommendations (Annexe 2 

in the revised Audit Charter) has been amended to include regular reporting to the Audit 

& Governance Committee of all High Priority Recommendations which have not been 

implemented within the agreed timescales. In the case of Medium Priority 

Recommendations the CIA will determine if the proposed revised date and reason for 

non-implementation is reasonable and will escalate to Audit & Governance Committee 

accordingly. 

 

29. This revised process will be implemented for the July 2022 Audit & Governance 

Committee and will enable the committee to seek further explanations from services on 

the reasons for non-implementation of recommendations if considered necessary. This 

change is occurring alongside the use of new Microsoft technology applications to 

develop real time management information on recommendation statuses for both clients 

and other stakeholders.  

75



Options Appraisal 

30. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

Summary of financial implications 

31. The BCP Internal Audit Team budgeted cost for 2021/22 is £697,900 which is inclusive 

of all direct costs including supplies & services but does not include the apportionment of 

central support costs (which are budgeted in aggregate and apportioned to services as a 

separate exercise). These numbers are also inclusive of the Head of Audit & 

Management Assurance who manages other teams. 

 

32. There are no anticipated material projected year end budget variances to report for 

2021/22. 

 

33. The BCP Internal Audit Team budgeted cost for 2022/23 is estimated to be £735,000 

(subject to pay award, national insurance and pension increase final calculations). This 

budget is inclusive of all direct costs including supplies and services but does not include 

the apportionment of  central support costs (which are budgeted in aggregate and 

apportioned to services as a  separate exercise). These numbers are also inclusive of the 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance who manages other teams. 

 
34. The allocated budget resource for 2022/23 of £735,000 is considered adequate to deliver 

the Internal Audit Charter 2022 and 2022/23 Audit Plan as described in this report. Audit 

& Governance Committee are asked to note the budget for the Internal Audit service 

which has been previously approved by Council. 

Summary of legal implications 

35. This report gives an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk, control and 

governance systems in place.                          

Summary of human resources implications 

36. The BCP Internal Audit Team consists of 13.53 FTE for both the 2021/22 and 2022/23 

financial years.  

Summary of sustainability impact 

37. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.  

Summary of public health implications 

38. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

39. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

40. The risk implications are set out in the content of this report. 

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

Appendix A – Internal Audit Charter 2022/23 
Appendix B – Core Audit Plan 2022/23 

Appendix C – Audits Planned for Quarter 1 
Appendix D – Anti-Fraud & Corruption Work Plan 2022/23 

76



 

Audit Charter 2022/23 

 

Live from 15 April 2022 
Annual evolution changes to this policy are shown in red text each year 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

  

  

  

  

Internal Audit 

  

  

  

Author:  Simon Milne & Ruth Hodges, Deputy Chief Internal Auditors 

Version:  V2022    

Review Date: March 2023 

    

Appendix A 

77



 

1.  Purpose Statement  
 

1.1 

 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) provide a consistent framework for 

Internal Audit Services operating across the public sector. The PSIAS require Internal 
Audit to periodically review its Charter 

1.2 The Internal Audit Charter describes the purpose, authority, responsibilities and scope of 
the Council’s Internal Audit Section. 
 

2.  Who the policy applies to   
 

2.1  

 

The Audit Charter will affect employees (particularly those within Internal Audit), 

Councillors and Statutory Officers. 
 

3.  This policy replaces   
 

3.1 

 

This policy replaces the Audit Charter 2021. 
  

4.  Approval process  
 

4.1 

 

This policy requires approval by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and by the Council’s 
Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

5.  The Policy  
 

5.1  

 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require all internal audit activities to 

implement and retain an ‘Internal Audit Charter’.  

5.2 The PSIAS are supplemented with a Local Government Application Note (LGAN) 

produced by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) in 
collaboration with the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA). The LGAN provides 

sector-specific requirements for local government organisations within the UK Public 
Sector. 

5.3 The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of the CIIA’s International Professional 
Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows:  

 Definition of Internal Auditing,  

 Code of Ethics, and  

 International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (including 
interpretations and glossary). 

5.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The headings of each section of this Charter refer to specific sections and standards of 

the PSIAS for reference purposes and also takes into account the PSIAS core principles:    

 Demonstrates integrity.   

 Demonstrates competence and due professional care.   

 Is objective and free from undue influence (independent).   

 Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation.   

 Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced.   

 Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement.   

 Communicates effectively.   

 Provides risk-based assurance.   

 Is insightful, proactive, and future-focused.   

 Promotes organisational improvement. 

For an internal audit function to be considered effective, all core principles should be 
present and operating effectively. 

78



 

 

6. Definition (Standard 1010) 

 

6.1 

 

Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed 

to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation 
accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and 

improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes. 
 

7. Purpose (Standard 1000) 
 

Internal Audit Charter 

7.1 The purpose of the Internal Audit Charter is to formally define the Internal Audit Service’s 
purpose, authority and responsibility. 
 

Internal Audit Purpose 

7.2 The Council is responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management 

processes, control systems and governance arrangements. Internal Audit plays a vital 
role in advising the Council that these arrangements are in place and operating 
effectively. 

7.3 The Council’s Internal Audit Service should contribute to the strengthening of the control 

environment and therefore contribute to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives. 

7.4 This is achieved through Internal Audit providing a combination of assurance and 
consulting activities. Assurance work involves assessing how well the systems and 
processes are designed and working, with consulting activities available to help to 

improve those systems and processes where necessary. 
 

Scope & Objectives of Internal Audit 

7.5 The Internal Audit Service structurally sits within the Audit & Management Assurance 
Team within Finance. 

7.6 The scope and objectives of the Internal Audit Service is to: 

 Appraise and report on the adequacy of internal controls across the whole 
organisation as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of 
resources. This includes: 

i. the completeness, reliability and integrity of information, both financial and 
operational, 

ii. the systems established to ensure compliance with policies, plans, procedures, 
laws and regulations, 

iii. the extent to which assets and interests are accounted for and safeguarded from 

loss, 

iv. the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources are employed, 

and 

v. whether operations are being carried out as planned and objectives and goals are 
being met. 

 Promote good governance arrangements and monitor progress made against 
governance actions.  

 Support the risk management process within the Council. 

 Advise on internal controls, risks or governance arrangements. 

 Support where necessary on relevant corporate / service projects or reviews.  

79



 

 Add value through advice, facilitation and training (subject to there being no impact on 
core assurance work, the maintenance of independence and the availability of skills 
and resources). 

 Be proactive in countering fraud and corruption.  

 Provide a corporate fraud investigation service.  

 Support the work of the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 Provide assurance over the financial operation of the Council’s maintained schools. 

 Provide assurance on government funds allocated to nurseries, pre-schools and 
childminders. 

 Provide an Internal Audit service for partnerships as directed by the Council.  

 Provide grant certification work as directed by the Council and/or external bodies. 
 

7.7 The detailed work of Internal Audit is set out within the risk based Internal Audit Plan 
which is designed to support the Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Internal Audit Opinion 

and Council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

7.8 In conducting its work, and if appropriate to do so, Internal Audit may choose to place 

reliance on the work of other assurance providers (e.g. External Audit, inspection 
agencies etc), to avoid duplication of effort and to maximise resources. 
 

8. Authority (Standards 1000, 1010) 
 

Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021 

8.1 Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021 requires the 

Council to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, and taking into account public sector 

internal auditing standards or guidance.” The Regulations also add that authorities are to 
“make available such documents and records and supply such information and 
explanations as are considered necessary by those conducting the internal audit”. 

 

Local Government Act 1972 

8.2 Internal Audit also assists the Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer) in discharging 

their delegated responsibilities under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 
which requires the Council to “make arrangements for the proper administration of their 

financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs”. 
 

Financial Regulations 

8.3 Part E (Internal Control, Audit and Risk Management) of the Council’s Financial 
Regulations support the authority given by Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 
2021 and the Local Government Act 1972. 

8.4 Part B Section 12 of the Financial Regulations states that “The CIA has rights of access to 

information and data held by officers or councillors of the Council at all reasonable times 
and is responsible for the overall co-ordination and deployment of external and internal 
audit resources at the Council. He/she also has the right to report on any relevant matter 

of concern to senior management and councillors of the Council outside normal line 
management arrangements should he/she deem this necessary in protecting the interests 

of the Council and/or local taxpayers.” 

8.5 For clarity, the above authority may extend to partner organisations if required. 

 

 

80



 

9. Responsibilities (Standard 1000) 
 

Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) 

9.1 The CIA is defined by PSIAS as the role of a person in a senior position responsible for 
effectively managing the Internal Audit Service in accordance with the Internal Audit 
Charter and the mandatory elements of PSIAS. 

9.2 The CIA is designated by the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) as part of his/her Service  

Scheme of Delegation of the Council’s Constitution and plays a key role in providing 
assurance to Councillors, the CFO, the Head of Paid Service (HPS) and the Statutory 
Officers Group about the probity, practical deployment and effectiveness of financial 

management of the Council. 

The CIA is responsible for: 

 Managing the Internal Audit Service and determining the scope and methods of audit 
activity. 

 Ensuring that Internal Audit staff operate within current auditing and ethical standards 
of the professional bodies of which Internal Audit are members. 

 Ensuring Internal Audit staff have an impartial, unbiased attitude and avoid conflicts of 

interest. 

 Preparing an Internal Audit Charter and annual Internal Audit Plan in consultation with 

the Audit and Governance Committee for approval. 

 Ensuring that the Internal Audit Service is appropriately resourced in terms of 

numbers, grades, qualification levels and experience to meet its objectives. 

 Ensuring a system of audit work supervision is in place. 

 Ensuring effective liaison between Internal and External Audit functions. 

 Providing an annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s control environment for Councillors’ consideration. 

 Notifying External Audit of any matter that they would rightly expect to be informed of 
in order to support the function of an effective and robust external audit service. 

 Determining the nature of any investigation work required in respect of any allegation 
of wrongdoing, and/or any other action required. 

 Requiring any Councillor or staff of the Council to provide any information or 
explanation needed in the course of an investigation subject to the lawful limits set out 
in relevant legislation. 

 Referring investigations to the Police in consultation with the CFO and Monitoring 
Officer (MO); under normal circumstances the relevant service manager would also 

be consulted. 

 Referring cases directly to the Police, in consultation with the CFO and MO, if it is 

believed an internal enquiry would compromise the integrity of the investigation and 
/or otherwise prejudice the interests of the Council or the general public. 
 

Audit and Governance Committee 

9.3 

 

 

 

 

 

For the purpose of the PSIAS, the Council’s Audit and Governance Committee will act as 
the ‘Board’ defined by the standards. Audit and Governance Committee provides 
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the 

internal control environment. It provides independent review of BCP Council’s 
governance, risk management and control frameworks and oversees the financial 

reporting and annual governance processes. It oversees internal audit and external audit, 
helping to ensure efficient and effective assurance arrangements are in place. 

81



 

9.4 The Audit and Governance Committee are responsible for the following (please see the 
Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference for a full list of responsibilities): 

 To approve the Internal Audit Charter. 

 To approve the risk-based Internal Audit Plan, including Internal Audit’s resource 
requirements, the approach to using other sources of assurance and any work 

required to place reliance upon those other sources.  

 To approve significant interim changes to the risk-based Internal Audit Plan and 

resource requirements. 

 To consider reports from the Head of Internal Audit on Internal Audit’s performance 
during the year, including the performance of external providers of internal audit 

services. These will include:  
a) updates on the work of internal audit including key findings, issues of concern 

and action in hand as a result of internal audit work. 
b) regular reports on the results of the Quality Assurance Improvement Programme 
(QAIP)  

c) reports on instances where the internal audit function does not conform to the 
PSIAS and LGAN, considering whether the non-conformance is significant enough 

that it must be included in the AGS.  

 To consider the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, with specific reference to:  
a) The statement of the level of conformance with the PSIAS and LGAN and the 

results of the QAIP that support the statement – these will indicate the reliability of 
the conclusions of internal audit.  

b) The opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control together with the summary 
of the work supporting the opinion – these will assist the committee in reviewing the 

AGS.    

 To consider summaries of specific internal audit reports as scheduled in the forward 

plan for the Committee or otherwise requested by Councillors. 

 To receive reports outlining the action taken where the Head of Internal Audit has 

concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to 
the authority or there are concerns about progress with the implementation of agreed 
actions.   

 To contribute to the QAIP and in particular to the external quality assessment of 
internal audit that takes place at least once every 5 years. 

 To commission work from the Internal Audit Service with due regard to the resources 
available and the existing scope and breadth of their respective work programmes 

and the forward plan for the Committee. 

 To consider the arrangements for corporate governance including reviews of the 
Local Code of Corporate Governance and review and approval of the Annual 

Governance Statement (AGS). 

 To consider the Council’s arrangements to secure value for money and review 
assurances and assessments on the effectiveness of these arrangements. 

 To consider arrangements for counter-fraud and corruption, including ‘whistle-blowing’ 

including approval of the Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy and the outcomes of any 
investigations in relation to this policy. 

 To liaise with the national body (currently Public Sector Audit Appointments (Ltd)) 

(PSAA) over the appointment of the Council’s External Auditors. 

 To support the independence of External Audit through consideration of the External 

Auditor’s annual assessment of its independence and review of any issues raised by 
PSAA.  

 To consider the External Auditor’s annual letter, relevant reports, and the report to 
those charged with governance.  
 

82



 

Chief Finance Officer, Section 151 Officer (CFO)   

9.5 The CFO (S151) will be responsible for: 

 Advising on effective systems of internal control to ensure that public funds are 
properly safeguarded and used economically, efficiently, and in accordance with 

statutes, regulations, and other relevant statements of best practice. 

 Conducting an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and 

publishing the results of this within the AGS for inclusion in the Council’s Annual 
Statement of Accounts.  

 Maintaining an adequate and effective Internal Audit Service in accordance with the 

Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations Act 2021 and further to Section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 

 Ensuring that the rights and powers of Internal and External Auditors and fraud 
investigators are upheld at all times across the organisation.  

 Ensuring that the statutory requirements for External Audit are complied with and that 
the External Auditor is able to effectively scrutinise the Council’s records. 

 Ensuring that audit plans and resulting activities are reported to the Audit and 

Governance Committee. 

 Developing, maintaining and implementing an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy (and 

in conjunction with Human Resources a Whistleblowing Policy) that stipulates the 
arrangements to be followed for preventing, detecting, reporting and investigating 

suspected fraud and irregularity. 

 Advising on the controls required for fraud prevention and detection.  

 Appointing a Money Laundering Reporting Officer and Deputy to ensure that systems 

are in place to counter opportunities for money laundering and that appropriate 
reports are made. 

 Ensuring that effective preventative measures are in place to reduce the opportunity 
for bribery occurring in accordance with statutory requirements of the Bribery Act. 

 Preparing the Council’s Risk Management Strategy and its promotion throughout the 
Council and for advising on the management of strategic, financial and operational 
risks. 

 

Senior Management  

9.6      For the purpose of the PSIAS, senior management is defined as the strategic  

           leadership teams. In BCP Council this is the Corporate Management Board (CMB) and 
Directors Strategy Group (DSG). 

 

Managers and employees 

9.7 Managers and employees are responsible for: 

 Implementing effective systems of internal control including adequate separation of 

duties, clear authorisation levels, and appropriate arrangements for supervision and 
performance monitoring.  

 Maintaining sound systems of internal control and implementing agreed Internal and 
External Audit recommendations within agreed timescales. 

 Taking corrective action in respect of any non-compliance by staff with relevant rules, 
regulations, procedures and codes of conduct. 

 Planning, appraising, authorising and controlling their operations in order to achieve 

continuous improvement, economy, efficiency and effectiveness and for achieving 
their objectives, standards and targets. 

83



 

 Ensuring that auditors (Internal and External) have access to all documents and 
records for the purposes of the audit and are afforded all facilities, co-operation and 
explanation deemed necessary. 

 Cooperating in the production of annual audit plans by highlighting any areas of risk 
that may benefit from audit review. 

 Ensuring the proper security and safe custody of all assets under their control. 

 Reporting cases of suspected cases of fraud or irregularity to the CIA immediately for 

investigation and complying with the Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. 

 Complying with the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy. 

 Ensuring that there are sound systems of internal control within their respective 
service areas for fraud prevention and detection. 

 Reporting any vulnerabilities or suspicions of money laundering in accordance with 

guidance issued by the Money Laundering Reporting Officer. 

 Maintaining local staff registers of interests, gifts and hospitality within their service 

areas. 
 

10. Reporting Lines (Standard 1000) 
 

10.1 

 

The CIA reports directly to the CFO (S151).  Section 11.5 of this document also applies to 
the CIA’s reporting lines. 

10.2 The CIA will report to the Audit and Governance Committee on a regular basis. 
 

11. Code of Ethics and Independence & Objectivity (Standard 1100) 

 

Code of Ethics 

11.1 All Internal Auditors will conform to the CIIA’s Code of Ethics. Where members of the 

Internal Audit Service have attained membership with other professional bodies such as 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) or CIPFA, those 

officers must also comply with their relevant bodies’ ethical requirements. In addition to 
this, all Internal Auditors will have regard to the “Seven Principles of Public Life”, known 
as the Nolan Principles. (www.public-standards.gov.uk) 

11.2 Each member of the Service will receive a copy of the Code of Ethics and sign up to an 

annual declaration to confirm that they will work in compliance with the Code of Ethics as 
well as the Council’s standards and policies such as the Council’s Codes of Conduct. 

Where potential areas of conflict may arise during the year, the Auditor will also be 
required to disclose this. It is critical that all Auditors maintain high standards of integrity, 
independence, objectivity, confidentiality and competence. 

11.3 Where an Internal Auditor’s conduct does not comply with these standards or codes, 

disciplinary action may be taken, either by the Council or by the individual’s professional 
body.   

 

Independence and Objectivity (1100)  

11.4 Other functions such as Emergency Planning, Business Resilience, Risk Management 

and Insurance operate within the Audit & Management Assurance Section and are 
managed by the CIA. This presents an inherent conflict of interest risk for the CIA for the 

audit of those areas. Therefore, Internal Audit engagements of these areas will be 
overseen by the Deputy Chief Internal Auditor (DCIA). 

11.5 The CIA (and DCIA when overseeing the areas outlined in 11.4) has direct access and 
freedom to report in his/her name and without fear or favour to all officers, Senior 

84

http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/


 

Management and Councillors (including the Chair of the Audit and Governance 
Committee) and particularly to those charged with governance. 

11.6 Internal Auditors must remain independent; therefore, Auditors will be independent of the 
activities audited to enable staff to perform their duties in a way that allows them to make 

impartial, objective and effective professional judgements and recommendations. As 
such, Audit staff will not ordinarily have any operational responsibilities or involvement in 
system design unless approved by the CIA. Further to this, audit staff will not assess 

specific operations for which they have had any responsibility within the previous year. 

11.7 The CIA will report annually to the CFO (S151) and the Audit and Governance Committee 
that independence and objectivity has been maintained. If this is not the case, disclosure 

will be made, this for example may be as a result of resource limitations, conflicts of 
interest or restricted access to records. 
 

12. Proficiency & Due Professional Care (Standard 1200) 
 

Proficiency (1210) 

12.1 Each job role within the Internal Audit structure will detail skills and competencies within 

the approved job description and person specification. In line with Council policy and the 
PSIAS, each member of the Service will be assessed against these predetermined 
competencies and annual objectives. Any development and training plans will be regularly 

reviewed, monitored and agreed with officers. This assessment will also take into account 
competency changes as needed i.e. to reflect changing technology and legislation. 

12.2 Auditors maintain a record of their continual professional development in line with their 
professional body. 

12.3 The CIA will hold a professional qualification from the Chartered Institute of Internal 

Auditors, Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies or equivalent. 
 

Due professional care (1220) 

12.4 Internal Auditors must exercise due professional care by considering the:  

 Extent of work needed to achieve the engagement’s objectives.  

 Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters under review. 

 Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes.  

 Probability of significant errors, fraud, or non-compliance. 

 Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits. 
 

13. Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (Standard 1300) 

 

13.1 

 

To enable the CIA to assess the Internal Audit Service’s conformance to the PSIAS and 

to aid in the annual assessment of Internal Audit’s efficiency and effectiveness and 
identify opportunities for improvement, a QAIP is in place (see Annexe 5). The QAIP 

includes both internal and external assessments. 

13.2 Assessment against the QAIP will form part of the annual assessment of the effectiveness 

of internal audit (contained within the Annual Auditors Report) which is published to the 
CFO (S151) and the Audit and Governance Committee. 

13.3 Where there are instances of non-conformances to the PSIAS this is reported to the CFO 

(S151) and Audit and Governance Committee. Any significant deviations will be detailed 
within the AGS. 

 

85



 

Internal Assessments (1311) 

13.4 Annual self-assessments will be carried out on the Internal Audit Service to confirm that it 

adheres to the PSIAS. The Local Government Application Note will be used to assist the 
self-assessment. The self-assessment will be included in the Annual Internal Audit Report 

and will be annually reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

13.5 All Auditors have access to an up to date audit manual (audit process document), the 
Internal Audit Charter, Council policies, the PSIAS and LGAN as well as other references. 
In addition, the CIA shares journals, publications and other relevant articles. Where staff 

are members of bodies such as the CIIA further guidance is available. 

13.6 Targets and performance indicators are set for individual auditors as well as for the team. 
These are agreed with the CFO (S151) and the Audit and Governance Committee. 

13.7 In addition to the QAIP, progress made against the annual Audit Plan and any emerging 
issues (i.e. fraud risks or governance issues) is reported regularly to the CFO (S151) and 

the Audit and Governance Committee. 

13.8 Ongoing assessment of staff is carried out through regular one to one meetings, 
stakeholder feedback from post audit questionnaires and formally in the annual 

performance conversation process. 

External Assessments (1312) 

13.9 The PSIAS stipulates that external assessment must be carried out at least once every 

five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside the 
organisation. 

13.10 The arrangement and scope of any such review will be agreed with the Audit and 

Governance Committee and the Independent Assessor.   
 

14. Managing the Internal Audit Activity (Standard 2000) 

 
14.1 

 

Internal Audit adds value to the Council by considering strategies, objectives and risks to 
offer ways to enhance governance, risk management, control processes and by providing 

objective assurance on these activities. 
 

Planning (2010) 

14.2 The CIA develops an annual risk based Internal Audit Plan, which can be updated to 
reflect changing risks and priorities of the organisation, to enable the production of the 
annual internal audit opinion. 

14.3 The plan will consider: 

 The need for specialist auditor skills, where they are not available already. 

 Contingency time for ad hoc reviews or fraud investigations. 

 Sufficient time for audit management including audit planning, development of the 
annual opinion and attendance at meetings and maintenance of audit policies and 

procedures (Standard 2040). 

 Staff training and development needs. 

 Liaison time with other assurance providers to share information (standard 2050), such 

as the External Auditor.  

 Assurances provided by other bodies (as detailed in the Council’s Assurance 

Framework). 

14.4 The CIA reports the risk based Internal Audit Plan and resource requirements to the CFO 
(S151) and the Audit and Governance Committee annually for review and approval. 

86



 

 

Resource Management (2030) 

14.5 For the Internal Audit Service to fulfil its responsibilities, it must be appropriately staffed in 
terms of numbers, professional qualifications, skills and experience. Resources must be 
effectively deployed to achieve the approved risk-based plan. The mix of available 

knowledge, skills and other competencies will be considered once the risk- based plan is 
drafted to ensure they are sufficient to deliver the plan. 

14.6 It is the responsibility of the CIA to report to the CFO (S151) and the Audit and 

Governance Committee on any resource concerns that may impact upon the delivery of 
the annual audit opinion. 

14.7 If necessary, the CIA will engage additional (specialist) resources. 

14.8 Employment of staff will be in compliance with the Council’s Human Resources policies. 
External resources will be procured in line with the Council’s Financial Regulations. 

 

Policies & Procedures (2040) 

14.9 The CIA will establish and maintain an audit manual which will outline the policies and 

procedures to guide the Internal Audit Service. 
 

15. Nature of the Work (Standard 2100) 
 

Governance (2110) 

15.1 Internal Audit will assess and make appropriate recommendations for improving the 
governance process in its accomplishment of the following objectives:  

 Promoting appropriate ethics and values within the organisation. 

 Ensuring effective organisational performance management, accountability and 

improvements to strategic and operational processes to meet the Council’s objectives.  

 Communicating risk and control information to appropriate areas of the organisation.  

 Coordinating the activities of and communicating information among the Audit and 

Governance Committee, External and Internal Audit and management. 
 

Risk Management (2010) 

15.2 Internal Audit evaluates the effectiveness and contributes to the improvement of risk 

management processes. 

15.3 In accordance with the PSIAS, Internal Audit: 

 Evaluates risk exposures relating to the Council’s governance, operations and 

information systems regarding the:  

o Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives.  
o Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information.  

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes.  
o Safeguarding of assets.  

o Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts. 

 Addresses risk consistent with the engagement’s objectives and are alert to the 
existence of other significant risks. 

 Incorporates knowledge of risks gained from consulting engagements into their 
evaluation of the organisation’s risk management processes. 

 Assists management in establishing or improving risk management processes but 
refrain from assuming any management responsibility by actually managing risks. 

 

87



 

Internal Control (2130) 

15.4 Internal Audit assists the organisation in maintaining effective controls by evaluating their 

effectiveness and efficiency and by promoting continuous improvement. 

15.5 Internal Audit evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in responding to risks 
within the organisation’s governance, operations and information systems regarding the:  

 Achievement of the organisation’s strategic objectives.  

 Reliability and integrity of financial and operational information.  

 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations and programmes.  

 Safeguarding of assets.  

 Compliance with laws, regulations, policies, procedures and contracts. 

15.6 Internal auditors will incorporate knowledge of controls gained from consulting 
engagements into evaluation of the organisation’s control processes. 
 

16. Engagement Planning (Standard 2200) 
 

Planning Considerations & Engagement Objectives (2201 & 2210) 

16.1 Audit work is undertaken using a risk-based audit approach, which will consider the 
probability of significant errors, fraud and non-compliance. A preliminary risk assessment 

will be prepared for each audit engagement to consider the activity’s strategies and 
objectives, the risks of the activity not meeting its objectives, the effectiveness of 

governance, risk management and control processes. The engagement objectives will be 
based on the results of this assessment. 

16.2 For all audit engagements (including engagements for external parties and consulting 
engagements) a terms of reference will be prepared, discussed and agreed with relevant 

managers. The terms of reference should establish the objectives, scope and timing for 
the audit assignment and its resources and reporting requirements. 

 

Engagement Scope & Engagement Resource Allocation (2220 & 2230) 

16.3 The scope prepared in the terms of reference will consider the relevant systems, records, 
personnel and premises. 

16.4 The scope of any engagements will be sufficient to address the objectives. However, if 
there are any reservations regarding the scope during an engagement, these will be 

raised with the client and the CIA (or delegated officer) to determine if the scope needs to 
be amended. 

16.5 Engagements will be allocated and carried out by Internal Auditors with the right mix of 
knowledge and skills to effectively complete the engagement. Auditors will be given 

sufficient resources to undertake the engagement. 
 

Engagement Work Programme (2240) 

16.6 Work programmes will be developed based on the engagement’s objectives. Work 
programmes will include the process for identifying, analysing, evaluating and 

documenting the audit work during the engagement. 
 

17. Performing the Engagement (Standard 2300) 

 

17.1 

 

Auditors are required to identify, analyse, evaluate and document sufficient information to 

achieve the engagement’s objectives. This evidence supports their conclusions, 
professional judgements and recommendations and therefore must be factual and 
accurate. This data is held in compliance with the Council’s retention policies. 

88



 

17.2 Access to the engagement records will be controlled. The Information Governance Team 
will be consulted on the release of all records to external parties. 

17.3 Each audit engagement will be overseen by the relevant Audit Manager. 
 

18. Communicating Results (Standard 2400) 
 

Criteria for Communication (2410) 

18.1 The results of all engagements are reported, including the objective, scope, all material 
facts, conclusions, recommendations, action plans, and any limitations and where 

appropriate contain the Internal Auditor’s opinion. Reports will be issued in a timely 
manner, in accordance with the Terms of Reference, subsequent to the completion of the 

work programme. Any significant variance in the timeframe for the report being issued will 
be agreed by the CIA or DCIA. 

18.2 Where results of engagements are released to external parties, a description of the 
limitations on distribution and use of the results will be included. 

18.3 The CIA has the overall responsibility for reviewing and approving the final engagement 

communication. However, Audit Managers are delegated this duty in most instances.  
Final Reports will be communicated to the correct officers/Councillors to ensure that the 
results are given due consideration. 

18.4 Final engagement communication may be in the form of an email where considered 

appropriate; however, this will be agreed with the CIA or DCIA before issuing. 

18.5 Table 1 provides the levels of opinion that can be provided for an audit engagement, with 
a short description: 
 

Table 1 

Opinion Description 

Substantial 

Assurance 

There is a sound control framework which is designed to achieve 

the service objectives, with key controls being consistently 

applied. 

Reasonable 

Assurance 
Whilst there is basically a sound control framework, there are 

some weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk. 

Partial Assurance 
There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting 

service objectives at risk. 

Minimal 

Assurance 

The control framework is generally poor and as such service 

objectives are at significant risk. 
 

 

18.6 

 

Table 2 provides a description of the three priority levels given to recommendations, 
together with an expected timeframe for implementation; the framework for scoring 

recommendations is contained within the audit manual. 

Table 2 

Priority Description 

High 

High priority recommendations have actual / potential critical implications for 

achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a major effect on service 

delivery.   

89



 

Agreed actions should be urgently implemented by the Service within 3 

months of the issue of the final audit report and the associated risk(s) added 

to the Service Risk Register. 

Recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as they fall due.   

Medium 

Medium priority recommendations have actual / potential significant 

implications for achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a significant 

effect on service delivery.   

Agreed actions should be implemented by the Service within 9 months of the 

issue of the final audit report and formal consideration should be given to 

adding the associated risk(s) to the Service Risk Register.   

Recommendations will be followed-up by Internal Audit as part of the next 

audit review or within 12 months after the implementation due date 

(whichever is sooner).   

Low 

Low priority recommendations have actual / potential minor implications for 

achievement of the Service’s objectives and/or a minor effect on service 

delivery. 

It rests with the Service to implement these actions. 

Recommendations will not be routinely followed up by Internal Audit, 

however, action taken to implement may be assessed on an ad hoc basis.   
 

 

18.7 

 

Contents of draft reports are discussed with managers to confirm factual accuracy.  

Significant issues will be brought to the attention of management during the course of 
engagements to allow for immediate action. 

18.8 Managers are required to give timely responses to each recommendation, detailing the 
responsible officer for each action and the target date for completion. 

18.9 All audit opinions are reported to the Statutory Officers Group and the Audit and 

Governance Committee. Audit reports with ‘Minimal’ assurance will be provided in full to 
the Audit and Governance Committee and ‘Partial’ assurance audit reports will be 
provided in a summary format. 

 

Errors or Omissions (2421) 

18.10 If final audit reports contain a significant error, the CIA (or delegated officer) will 

communicate the corrected information to all parties who received the original 
communication. 
 

Engagement Disclosure of Non-conformance (2431) 

18.11 Where a non-conformance to either the Code of Ethics or the PSIAS impacts on a specific 

audit engagement, then the communication of the results must disclose the: 

 Principle or rule with which full conformance was not achieved. 

 Reasons for non-conformance. 

 Impact of non-conformance on the engagement and the results.  

18.12 Instances of non-conformance will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 

Annual Internal Audit Opinion (2450) 

18.13 The CIA will prepare an Annual Internal Audit Opinion Report that will be used by the 
Council to inform the AGS. 

90



 

18.14 The Annual Internal Audit Opinion Report will conclude on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control by 
giving an overall opinion, summary of the work undertaken to support this opinion 

(including any reliance place on work by other assurance providers). 

18.15 The Annual Internal Audit Opinion Report will include a statement on the conformance 
with the PSIAS and the results of the QAIP. 
 

19. Monitoring Process (Standard 2500) 
 

19.1 

 

The CIA will establish a follow-up process to ensure that management actions have been 

effectively implemented or that Senior Management has accepted the risk of not taking 
action. 

19.2 Non-implemented audit recommendations will follow the Internal Audit escalation process. 
(See Annexe 2) 
 

20. Communicating the Acceptance of Risks (Standard 2600) 
 

20.1 

 

High and Medium priority accepted risks will be reported to the Statutory Officers Group. 
(See Annexe 2) 

20.2 Where the CIA concludes that management have accepted a High or Medium risk that 
may be deemed unacceptable to the Council or have not implemented a high-risk action, 

the CIA must discuss this with the Statutory Officers Group. If the matter has still not been 
resolved, then this must be escalated to the Audit and Governance Committee. (See 

Annexe 2) 

20.3 It is not the CIA’s responsibility to resolve the risk. 
 

21.  Review of the Internal Audit Charter  
 

21.1 

 

In accordance with the PSIAS this Charter will be reviewed and updated (annually as a 
minimum) to meet the Council’s changing risks and priorities. 

 

Internal Audit Charter proposed by: 

………………………………………………………………………..   ……………. 

CIA           Date 

 

Internal Audit Charter approved by: 

………………………………………………………………………..   ……………. 

CFO (Section 151 Officer)        Date 

………………………………….…………………………………….             .…………… 

Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee      Date 

 

 22.  Further information and evidence   
  

Annexe 1 – Glossary & Acronyms 

Annexe 2 – Escalation Policy for Non-Implemented Internal Audit Recommendations 

Annexe 3 – Consultees and document control  

Annexe 4 – Equality Impact Assessment  

Annexe 5 – Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

91



Annexe 1 
 

GLOSSARY & ACRONYMS  
 

Annual Governance Statement – The purpose of the annual governance statement is for the 

Council to report publicly on its arrangements for ensuring that its business is conducted in 

accordance with the law, regulations and proper practices and that public money is 

safeguarded and properly accounted for. This includes how the authority has monitored and 

evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any planned 

changes in the coming period. 
 

Annual Internal Audit Opinion - The rating, conclusion, and/or other description of results 

provided by the Chief Internal Auditor addressing, at a committee level, governance, risk 

management, and/or control processes of the Council. An overall opinion is the professional 

judgment of the Chief Internal Auditor based on the results of a number of individual 

engagements and other activities for a specific time interval.  
 

Assurance activity - An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an 

independent assessment on governance, risk management, and control processes for the 

Council. Examples may include financial, performance, compliance, system security, and due 

diligence engagements.  
 

Audit Engagement - A specific internal audit assignment, task, or review activity, such as an 

internal audit, control self-assessment review, fraud examination, or consultancy. An 

engagement may include multiple tasks or activities designed to accomplish a specific set of 

related objectives. 
  

Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors - The professional association for internal auditors in 

the UK and Ireland.  
 

Code of Ethics - The Code of Ethics of The Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) are principles 

relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing, and Rules of Conduct that describe 

behaviour expected of internal auditors. The Code of Ethics applies to both parties and entities 

that provide internal audit services. The purpose of the Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical 

culture in the global profession of internal auditing.  
 

CCAB – Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies.  

CFO – Chief Finance Officer. 

CIA – Chief Internal Auditor. (The Head of Audit & Management Assurance in BCP Council) 

CIIA – Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors. 

CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.  

CMIIA – Chartered Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors.  
 

Consultancy activity - Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of 

which are agreed with the client, are intended to add value and improve the Council’s 

governance, risk management, and control processes without the internal auditor assuming 

management responsibility. 
 

Control Environment - The attitude and actions of the board and management regarding the 

importance of control within the organization. The control environment provides the discipline 

and structure for the achievement of the primary objectives of the system of internal control. 

The control environment includes the following elements: 

92



 

 Integrity and ethical values. 

 Management's philosophy and operating style. 

 Organizational structure. 

 Assignment of authority and responsibility. 

 Human resource policies and practices. 

 Competence of personnel. 
 

Controls - Any action taken by management, the board, and other parties to manage risk and 

increase the likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved. Management 

plans, organises, and directs the performance of sufficient actions to provide reasonable 

assurance that objectives and goals will be achieved. 
  

DCIA – Deputy Chief Internal Auditor.  
 

Governance - The combination of processes and structures implemented by the board to 

inform, direct, manage, and monitor the activities of the Council toward the achievement of its 

objectives.  
 

HPS – Head of Paid Service. 

ICAEW - Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. 
 

Internal Audit Charter - The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the 

internal audit activity's purpose, authority, and responsibility. The Internal Audit Charter 

establishes the internal audit activity's position within the Council; authorises access to records, 

personnel, and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines 

the scope of internal audit activities.  
 

LGAN – Local Government Application Note. 

MO – Monitoring Officer.  
 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) - The Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards: 

 define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector. 

 set basic principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector. 

 establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value to the 

organisation, leading to improved organisational processes and operations, and 

 establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to drive 

improvement planning.  
 

QAIP – Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme. 
 

Risk Assessment - A preliminary assessment of the risks relevant to the activity under review. 
 

Risk Management - A process to identify, assess, manage, and control potential events or 

situations to provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the Council's 

objectives.  
 

Risks - The possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of 

objectives. Risk is measured in terms of impact and likelihood.  
 

S151 – Section 151 Officer.  
 

Work programme - The process of collecting, analysing, interpreting, and documenting audit 

testing during an audit engagement.

93



Annexe 2 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 

4
. R

is
k
 A

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 

3
. R

is
k

 N
o

t A
d

d
re

s
s
e
d

 

2
. R

is
k

 A
c

c
e

p
te

d
 

2 weeks* 

Auditor / AM to contact 
Responsible Officer 

 

Response received and reviewed by AM 

 

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 re

c
e
iv

e
d

 

 

 

Recommendation 
closed 

 

1 week* 

AM to obtain 
reason for delay 

and revised 
timescale 

(advise/verify 
response with  

Service Director) 

 
 

 

1 week* 

Follow up process 
begins again 

 

AM/CIA to determine if risk can reasonably be 
accepted (request from Service Director/Director) 

 

ESCALATION POLICY FOR NON-IMPLEMENTED INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

SOG 
determines 

risk 
CANNOT 

be 
accepted 

SOG 
determines 
risk CAN 

be 
accepted 

CIA to escalate to Audit & 
Governance Committee at next 

quarterly meeting 

Key 
* = suggested timescale 

 

CIA to report and 
escalate to Audit & 

Governance 
Committee at next 
quarterly meeting 

 
 

Service advised that recommendation 
must be implemented – normal 

follow up process to be followed 

Report to Audit & Governance 
Committee at next quarterly 

meeting 
 

CIA to escalate to Service 
Director / Corporate 

Director (advise this will go 
to A&G) 

 

AM to escalate to 
Service Director  

AM to escalate to Head 
of Service. 

 

CIA to discuss at SOG 

Recommendation 
closed 

A&G agree that risk 
CAN be accepted 

A&G disagree & determine that risk CANNOT be accepted 

 

1. No Response 

No 

Has the reason/ 
timescale been 
agreed by the 

CIA? 

Follow up process 
begins again 

 

 
Yes 

Medium 
Priority 

94



 

NOTES: 

Risk Addressed: 

Recommendation has been implemented satisfactorily and/or suitable controls have been put in place to mitigated or reduced the risk to an 
acceptable level. 

 
Risk Not Addressed: 

Partial/Incorrect implementation of recommendation resulting in risk not being mitigated or reduced to an acceptable level and therefore still 
represents a threat to the Service Unit not achieving its objectives.  
 
Risk Accepted: 

The Service Director decides not to implement the recommendation and has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable to the 
organisation.  
 
GLOSSARY: 
 
AM – Audit Manager  

 
CIA – Chief Internal Auditor  

 
SOG – Statutory Officer’s Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

95



Annexe 3 
 

Consultees  

The following individuals/groups have been consulted during this year’s evolution of this 

Charter:  

Name   

Internal Audit  

Statutory Officers Group  

Audit and Governance Committee 
  

  
Equalities Impact Assessment   

Assessment date  Reviewed as part of this years’ evolution 31/03/2022 (screening 
tool – no formal assessment required) as per Annexe 4  

  

Document Control  

Approval body   Audit and Governance Committee  

Approval date   14 April 2022  

V1 – April 2019  New Policy created (please note any version changes in the 
future will be shown in red text)  

V2 – June 2020   Added appendix of the escalation process. 

 Update to reflect Audit and Governance Committee 
responsibilities in line with new Terms of Reference. 

 Update to reflect changes to Service and Job title naming. 

 Update to reflect responsibilities in line with updated 
Financial Regulations.  

 Update to reflect changes to audit processes. 

 Update Accounts & Audit Regulations reference from 2015 to 

2020 

V2021 – April 2021   Expected timeframe for implementation of High and Medium 
Priority recommendations added (para 18.6 table 2) 

 Expanded Medium ‘Recommendations will be followed-up 
by Internal Audit as part of the next audit review or within 12 
months after the implementation due date (whichever is 
sooner)’ (para 18.6 table 2) 

 Reformatted to follow corporate policy template 

 Appended EIA screening tool.  

V2022 – April 2022   Legislation reference update to Accounts and Audit 
(Amendment) Regulations from 2020 to 2021 

 Added PSIAS core principles 

 Defined ‘senior management’ in the document  

 Included conflict of interest risk inherent in the Chief Audit 
Executive (Head of Audit and Management Assurance) 
having non-audit functions 

 Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme added at 
Annexe 5 

 Escalation process enhanced to include regular reporting to 
Audit and Governance of non-implemented High 
Recommendations 

 Clarified Low priority Recommendations will not be routinely 
followed up by Internal Audit, however, action taken to 
implement may be assessed on an ad hoc basis.  

  

96



 

1 
 

Equality Impact Assessment: conversation screening tool     

Policy/Service under 
development/review:  Internal Audit Charter 2022 

What changes are being made to 
the policy/service?  Annual refresh of the Charter 

Service Unit:  Finance 

Persons present in the 
conversation and their 
role/experience in the service:   

Simon Milne, Deputy Chief Internal Auditor  

Jon Cockeram, Deputy Service Equality Champion 

Conversation dates:  31/03/2022 

Do you know your current or potential 
client base? Who are the key 
stakeholders?  

The Audit Charter will affect employees (particularly those within 
Internal Audit), Members and Statutory Officers.    

Do different groups have different 
needs or experiences in relation to 
the policy/service?   

The Charter does not create different needs for different groups. 

Will the policy or service change 
affect any of these service users?   

The policy lays out the roles and responsibilities of Internal Audit, 
the Chief Internal Auditor, the Audit and Governance Committee, 
the Section 151 Officer and managers & employees 

[If the answer to any of the questions above is ‘don’t know’ then you need to gather more evidence 
and do a full EIA. The best way to do this is to use the Capturing Evidence form]  

What are the benefits or positive 
impacts of the policy/service change 
on current or potential service users?   

No benefits or positive impacts have been identified  

What are the negative impacts of the 
policy/service change on current or 
potential service users?  

No negative impacts have been identified  

Will the policy or service change 
affect employees?   

Yes, the policy affects employees by laying out their roles & 
responsibilities in relation to Internal Audit  

Will the policy or service change 
affect the wider community?   

This policy does not affect the wider community  

What mitigating actions are planned  

or already in place for those 
negatively affected by the 
policy/service change? 

No negative implications identified, so no mitigating actions 
required   

Summary of Equality Implications:   No equality implications have been identified as a result of this 
policy.  

  
 

 

Annexe 4 

 

97



 

2 
 

 

 

             

                 INTERNAL AUDIT 

QUALITY ASSURANCE & IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAMME 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) requires that the Chief Executive Auditor 

(referred to in this document as the Head of Audit and Management Assurance – HAMA) develops 

and maintains a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) that covers all aspects of 

the internal audit activity including consultancy. 

 
1.2 A QAIP is designed to enable an evaluation of the internal audit activity’s conformance with the 

Standards and whether internal auditors apply the Code of Ethics. The programme also assesses 

the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit activity and identifies opportunities for 

improvement. 

 
1.3 All internal audit staff have a responsibility for maintaining quality. 

 

1.4 The QAIP includes the following:  

 Internal Assessments – Ongoing performance monitoring of the Internal Audit Activity to ensure 

effectiveness of the Internal Audit Team (Paragraph 2) and periodic self-assessments to evaluate 

conformance with the Code of Ethics and Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (Paragraph 3).  

 External Assessments - assessments of the audit activity to evaluate conformance with the Code 

of Ethics and Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (Paragraph 4).  

 
1.5 In designing the BCP’s Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme due regard was given to 

the PSIAS and IIA QAIP Framework (Paragraph 5).  

 

2. Ongoing Performance Monitoring  

 
2.1 Ongoing performance monitoring is an integral part of the day-to-day supervision, review and 

measurement of the internal audit activity. Ongoing monitoring is incorporated into the routine 

policies and practices used to manage the internal audit activity and uses processes, tools and 

information considered necessary to evaluate conformance with the Code of Ethics and the PSIAS. 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES  

 
2.2 The structure of the Internal Audit Service will be periodically reviewed to ensure that it remains 

appropriately resourced in terms of numbers, grades, qualification levels and experience to meet its 

objectives. 

Annexe 5  

 

98



 

3 
 

 
2.3 All Auditors will hold a relevant professional qualification, be studying towards one or will have 

equivalent audit experience.  

 
INTERNAL AUDIT DELIVERY  

2.4 Engagement Supervision / Reviews – Audit engagements are supervised by either an Audit 

Manager (AM) or Deputy Chief Internal Auditor (DCIA). All work programmes and/or working 

papers are reviewed by an AM or deputy CIA during and after the engagement. Review and 

approval of all draft and final audit reports are undertaken by the AM and all partial / minimal 

assurance reports are reviewed by the deputy CIA and HAMA. Audit engagement rotations are 

made where desirable to ensure new ideas are injected into audits to improve quality. Evidence of 

supervision / reviews are kept on file.  

 
2.5 Monthly one-to-one meetings (with Auditors and Audit Managers) and fortnightly team catch-up 

meetings include discussions on audit progress and audit engagement issues.  

 
2.6 Audit Processes – Various policy and procedure documents have been produced and made 

available to all auditors to assist with performing the internal audit activity and maintain quality 

including: 

 Internal Audit Charter 

 Internal Audit Process Manual  

 Internal Audit process templates and process videos 

 Internal Audit Data Retention Policy. 

 

 Audit processes are regularly reviewed. Any changes to processes are updated and recorded in 

the audit manual and/or Audit Charter where required. 

 
2.7 Stakeholder Feedback – Internal Audit Satisfaction Surveys are requested for each audit 

engagement. Survey results are monitored by the Deputy Chief Internal Auditors (DCIAs) and 

appropriate action taken in respect of any issues raised. 

 
2.8 Recommendation Follow-ups – Audit recommendations are logged to monitor and ensure that 

management actions have been effectively implemented or that senior management have accepted 

the risk of not taking action. 

 

2.9 Performance Conversation Appraisals (PCA) – Annual PCAs are undertaken in respect of all 

staff within the Internal Audit Service. These reviews support Internal Audit in implementing 

appropriate training programmes for all auditors to ensure that they continue to deliver a 

professional service in line with current best practice. PCAs also include a retrospective review of 

performance on audits and a review of the SMART objectives set. 

 
2.10 Training – Monthly one-to-one meetings are held with Auditors and Audit Managers to assess staff 

training needs and monitoring. Formal records of training are held on each individual auditor’s one-

to-one document. 
  

PERFORMANCE TARGETS 

2.11 Internal Audit’s performance against its service objectives will be managed by setting and monitoring 

performance targets as set out in Appendix 1. Where performance levels are not being met, an action 

plan will be put in place to address these concerns.  

99



 

4 
 

3. Periodic Self-Assessments 

3.1 Periodic self-assessments are designed to assess conformance with the PSIAS.  

3.2 Periodic assessments will be conducted through: 

 Completion of an annual checklist by DCIA to determine Internal Audit’s conformance with the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

 A detailed review of individual PSIAS standards carried out by an Audit Manager on rolling 

basis, aiming to cover all standards within a five-year period.   

 Results from the checklist and reviews above are reported in the CIAs Annual Report & Opinion 

and the Audit and Governance Committee meetings.  
 

3.3 The level of conformance of the internal audit activity with the PSIAS is measured using Conforms / 

Partially Conforms / Not Conforming assessment criteria. The HAMA will determine if Internal Audit 

overall conforms to the PSIAS taking into account any areas of partial or non-conformance.  

 

4. External Assessments  

 

4.1 BCP Internal Audit will ensure that an external review is undertaken every five years (as required 

by PSIAS). The scope of the external review will be approved by the Audit and Governance 

Committee and confirmed with the relevant assessor prior to the assessment taking place. The 

results of the assessment will be communicated to the Audit and Governance Committee. An 

action plan to address any issues raised from the external reviews will be put in place and 

presented to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

5. Background information and reference: 

IIA practice guide-Quality-Assurance-and-Improvement-Program 2012 

Diagram 1 Program (QAIP) Framework 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Extract from: 

Quality Assurance and Improvement Program IPPF – Practice Guide, IIA, (2012:p4) 

100

https://iia.org.au/sf_docs/default-source/technical-resources/practice-guide-quality-assurance-and-improvement-program.pdf?sfvrsn=2


 

5 
 

6. Document Control  

Title Internal Audit Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme  

Owner (job title) Nigel Stannard, Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

Authors (job title) 
Simon Milne & Ruth Hodges, Audit Managers, Deputy Chief Internal 

Auditors (DCIAs) 

Current version v1 

Effective from date 1 April 2022 

Approval By Audit and Governance Committee 

Approval date 14 April 2022 

Review Frequency Annually 

Next Review Date April 2023 

101



Internal Audit Performance Targets – Appendix 1 
 INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE OBJECTIVE:  

To provide an independent and objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and help the Council achieve its objectives by ensuring there 
is a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes.  
 

  

CSF1: Internal Audit is adequately resourced to allow the CIA to conclude on their Annual Opinion 

REF PERFORMANCE TARGET REPORTED TO*  MONITORING PROCESS MONITORING 
FREQUENCY   

1A To complete at least 90% of the 
annual audit plan. 

A&G (Quarterly) 
 

SOG (Quarterly) 
 

CIA Report (Annual) 

 Internal Audit Monitoring Sheet – Audit Managers regularly update audit 
statuses and available auditor resources.  

 Monitored by the DCIAs and communicated to the HAMA monthly through 
2-2-1 meetings.   

 

Ongoing 
 

Monthly 
 
 

1B All auditors to complete their 

allocated audits within the required 
timescales (both within total days 
allocated and target key dates).  

 

 

DCIA / HAMA (at least 

Monthly) 
 Internal Audit Plan Monitoring Sheet – Audit Managers regularly update 

target dates, budgeted vs actual time spent and audit statuses.  

 Individual engagement performance is reported to and considered by the 
HAMA. 

 Audit Manager or DCIA oversight during/end of audit engagements 

including through 1-2-1 meetings. 

 Annual Performance conversation appraisals will review the year end 
position. 

Ongoing 

 
Ongoing  
 

Ongoing  
 
Annually  

CSF2: Internal Audit provides an effective and efficient service 

2A All auditors to complete their 

allocated audits to a professional 
standard.  

DCIA / HAMA    Audit Manager or DCIA oversight during/end of audit engagements 
including 1-2-1 meetings. 

 Annual Performance conversation appraisals will review the year end 
position. 

Ongoing  

 
Annually 

2B All auditors to ensure a provision 
of timely and professional ad hoc 

support and advice.  

DCIA / HAMA    Professional standard of ad hoc support and advice reviewed at 1-2-1 
meetings.   

 Annual Performance conversation appraisals will review the year end 
position. 

Monthly  
Annually 

2C 100% of recommendations 
accepted for implementation by 
management (or risk acceptance 

agreed). 

A&G (Annually via CIA 
Report)  
 

SOG   
(Accepted Risks only) 

 Client agreement of Draft Audit Report and Recommendations.  Ongoing  
 

2D 100% of customer satisfaction 
surveys received rate the service 

as satisfactory (score of 3) or 
above. 

A&G (Annually) 
 

DCIA / HAMA  

 Satisfaction Survey results are recorded on the Teams Dashboard and 
Internal Audit Monitoring Sheet.  

 Individual engagement satisfaction surveys are reported to and 
considered by the HAMA. 
 

Ongoing  
 

Ongoing  
 

102



 

1 
 

 

*KEY:  A&G – Audit and Governance Committee 

 SOG – Senior Officers Group 

 HAMA – Head of Management Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) 

 DCIA – Deputy Chief Internal Auditor 

    
 

2E 100% of High and Medium 
recommendations are followed up 

within timescales stated in the 
Audit Charter. 
 

A&G (Quarterly) 
 

DCIA / HAMA  
(Monthly) 

 Recommendation tracker is updated where follow-ups have been carried 
out. Overdue recommendations are monitored via the Recommendation 

Teams Dashboard and discussed with Audit Managers / DCIA at their 1-2-
1.  

Monthly 

2F 100% of High and Medium 

Recommendations comply with the 
Escalation Policy for non-
implemented Internal Audit 

Recommendations. 
 

A&G (Annually)  

 
DCIA / HAMA (Monthly) 

 Recommendations followed up but not implemented are escalated in 

compliance with the comply with   Escalation Policy for non-implemented 
Internal Audit Recommendations. Monitored via Recommendation Teams 
Dashboard and discussed with Audit Managers / DCIA at their 1-2-1/2-2-

1. 

Monthly 

CSF3: Internal Audit staff are adequately skilled to provide a professional service 

3A 100% completion of Performance 
Conversation Appraisals within the 

Internal Audit Team. 

DCIA / HAMA 
(Annually)  

 All staff receive a performance conversation appraisal (PCA), using the 
corporate template, during which employee behaviours and achievement 

of previous year objectives are discussed. In addition, objectives for the 
year ahead are agreed. 

Annually  

3B 100% Completion of Mandatory 
Training as required.  

 

DCIA / HAMA  Records of mandatory training are logged centrally.  

 Mandatory training is discussed and monitored at 1-2-1 meetings.   
 

Ongoing 
Monthly 

3C Completion of individual staff CPD 

requirements for Audit Managers ,  
DCIA and HAMA.  
 

DCIA / HAMA  Monthly one to one meetings are held to assess staff training which 

includes CPD monitoring for Audit Managers. 

Monthly 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank

104



APPENDIX B       

Public 
Health

Law & 
Governance

Policy & 
Research

Comms & 
Marketing

Delivery of 
Regeneration

Adult Social 
Care Services

Commissioning Public Health

Children's Social Care 
(incl Permancy & 

Corporate Parenting, 
Early Help & 

Protection, Social 
Care & Quality)

Education
Transport & 
Engineering

Planning
Destination & 

Culture
Environment Housing Communities IT & IS

Customer & 
Business Delivery

HR & 
Organisational 
Development

PMO and Major 
Change Finance Development

Law & 
Governance

Policy & 
Research

Comms & 
Marketing

Delivery of 
Regeneration

Asset Management (Facilities Management/Estate Management) Customer & BD/Dev 20 20 35 40

Business Continuity Finance 10 10 10

Business Planning & Performance Management Policy & Research 10 10 10

Financial Management Finance 10 15 10

Health & Safety (incl. Fire Safety) Finance/Customer & BD 5 10 15 15

Human Resources HR & Organisational Dev 10 10 10

ICT IT & IS 10 10 10

Information Governance Law & Governance 10 20 10

Procurement Finance 20 20 20

Project & Programme Management PMO & Major Change 10 10 10

Risk Management Finance 10 10 10

Safeguarding Policy & Research 10 10 10

Sustainable Environment Environment 20 0 20

Partnerships Communities 10 20 10

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 0 10 10 25 10 10 60 20 10 20 0 0 195 195

Council Tax/NDR Finance 40 40 40

Housing Benefit Finance 20 20 20

Debtors Finance 20 20 20

Main Accounting System Finance 20 30 20

Social Services Financial Assessments Finance 10 15 20 25

Creditors Finance 20 30 20

Payroll HR & Organisational Dev 25 40 25

Treasury Management Finance 15 20 15

Housing Rents Housing 15 10 15

10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 25 0 150 0 0 0 0 230 200

Corporate\Service Risk Register & other risks - 60 40 20 80 40 30 30 30 30 40 30 30 15 15 - 5 10 15 0 0 20 545 540

Key Assurance Function risks - 10 10 - 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 - - 10 10 10 - - - 155 160

70 50 20 100 50 40 40 40 40 50 40 40 25 15 0 15 20 25 0 0 20 700 700

Sc
ho

o
ls Schools Education 60 60 60

Corporate Work (inc. NFI) Finance 45 45

Grant Award All Services 1 1 - 1 1 1 1 1 1 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - 25

Identity Fraud All Services 1 1 - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - 20

Money Laundering Requirements Finance 15 15

Criminal Finances Act Requirements Finance 15 15

Right to Buy Housing 20 20

Declaration of Interests (Councillors) Law & Governance 10 10

Housing Tenancy (data matching) Housing 10 10

2 2 0 2 2 2 2 2 2 38 2 2 3 2 2 77 2 12 2 2 0 160 160

O
th

er Planning, Advice, Follow Ups - 15 15 5 25 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 5 5 20 5 15 5 5 15 270 270

130 93 25 100 161 61 14 69 74 94 74 72 67 57 17 354 62 57 17 17 0 1615

97 67 25 127 127 57 57 57 77 118 67 67 68 57 17 322 47 62 27 7 35 1585

25 62 27 7 35 1585

To
ta

l
H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l 
Ri

sk
s

Co
un

te
r 

Fr
au

d

Total

254
Total Days 2022/23

Total Days 2021/22 

Total

Total

Overall Total Days 2022/23

Ke
y 

As
su

ra
nc

e 
Fu

nc
ti

on
s 

(c
or

e 
fu

nc
ti

on
s)

Total

Ke
y 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ys

te
m

s

433 209 369

2022/23 BCP Core Audit Plan

2022/23
Total Days

2021/22 
Original

Children's Place Operation Services Transformation & Resources

Audit (Lead) Area

FinanceAdults

164

105



T
his page is intentionally left blank

106



APPENDIX C 

 

2022/23 BCP INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

 

QUARTER 1 AUDITS PLANNED (provisional) 

 Service Area Audit Days 

 Adult Social Care & Commissioning Procurement (KAF) 15 

  Commissioning 20 

 Children’s Services Information Governance (KAF) 15 

  Care Experienced Young People 20 

 Children’s Services (Education) Hillbourne School 8 

  St Edwards School 11 

 Communities Safeguarding (KAF) 10 

 Customer & Business Delivery Business Continuity (KAF) 10 

 Destination & Culture Major Events (including Air Festival) 15 

 Environment 
Climate and Ecological Action and 

Sustainable Environment (core KAF) 
45 

 Finance  Business Continuity (core KAF) 10 

  Identity Fraud (counter fraud) 20 

  
Money Laundering Requirements 

(counter fraud) 
15 

  Business Continuity (service review) 10 

 HR & Organisational Development Payroll (KFS) 40 

 Planning KAFs Overview for Service 25 

 Policy & Research 
Business Planning & Performance 

(core KAF) 
10 

 

Key: KAF – Key Assurance Function, KFS – Key Financial System 

  

107



This page is intentionally left blank

108



 

 

APPENDIX D 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

ANTI-FRAUD & CORRUPTION WORK PLAN 

 

2022/23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Author: Simon Milne, Audit Manager Deputy CIA 
Version: V2022 
Review Date: Annual, next due March 2023 

109



 

 

 
Background 
 

The Council’s overall arrangements for preventing and detecting fraud and corruption are 
regularly reviewed and assessed by Internal Audit. 
 
The following key policies are in place within the Authority: 

 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 

 Whistle-Blowing Policy 

 Declarations of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality Policy 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and Investigatory Powers Act (IPA) 
Policy 

 Financial Regulations 

 Employee/Member Codes of Conduct 
 
Introduction 

 
Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. Audit 
procedures alone, even when performed with due professional care, cannot guarantee that 
fraud or corruption will be detected. 
 
Nevertheless, Internal Audit has a key role to play in the prevention, detection, and 
investigation of fraud and corruption. 
 
Internal Audit maintain the Council’s Corporate Fraud Risk Register and ensure any high 
scoring risks are considered for inclusion in individual service risk registers.  
 
The Corporate Fraud Risk Register is used to identify key Council fraud and corruption risks 
and to allow Internal Audit to allocate its resource and regularly review these key risks as 
part of the annual audit plan.  
 
2022/23 Annual Fraud Risk Assessment 
 

The audit of fraud and corruption is an important feature of the Audit Plan and comprises of 
three main elements: 

 An assessment of all or part of the Council’s overall arrangements for preventing 
and detecting fraud and corruption 

 Ensuring counter-fraud and corruption work is incorporated within planned audits 
across directorates (e.g. payroll, creditors)  

 Review and testing of specific risk areas that are not covered by planned audits. 
 
Time has been allocated in the 2022-23 Audit Plan to carry out pro-active prevention and 
detection work on fraud and corruption to include the specific risk areas not covered by 
planned audits. This time also includes work on the co-ordination of the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI) data matching exercise. 
 
The 2022-23 Audit Plan has also allocated days to undertake investigative work to be 
carried out if fraud or corruption is suspected or detected.  
 
Corporate Fraud Work  

 
Fraud checks on Council housing services (applications and right to buy), along with 
specialist support with Blue Badge fraud will be carried out by the Corporate Fraud 
Specialists within Internal Audit. 

 
 

 

110



 

 

 
 

 ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION WORK PLAN 2022/23    

REF 
PLANNED ACTIVITY Core Audit 

DAYS 
Investigation 

DAYS 
Corporate 

Fraud 

DAYS 

 STRATEGIC    

1.1 Review of Best Practice – against CIPFA & other guidance 2   

1.2 Fraud Risk Assessment – review and update 2   

1.3 Fraud Surveys – complete 1   

 CULTURE & DETERENCE    

2.1 
Issue fraud alerts - review types of frauds occurring & inform 

officers\managers 
3   

2.2 E-learning - review use of e-learning module 1   

2.3 Counter Fraud Policies - annual review 2   

 PREVENTION & DETECTION    

4.1 Proactive analytical fraud detective work    

4.2 Grant Award (all) 25   

4.3 Identity Fraud (all) 20   

4.4 Money Laundering Requirements (Finance) 15   

4.5 Criminal Finances Act Requirements (Finance) 15   

4.6 Housing Tenancy data matching (Housing)  15   

4.7 Right to Buy (Housing) 15   

4.8 Declaration of Interests (for Councillors) (Law & Governance) 10   

4.9 NFI Data-matching support and investigation 30   

4.10 
Corporate Fraud Work - Housing Allocation\Tenancy\Right to Buy & 
Blue Badges 

   100 

 INVESTIGATION    

5.1 General Counter Fraud Work - responding to suspected irregularities  100  

5.2 Corporate Fraud Work – responding to suspected irregularities   20 

 SANCTION/REDRESS    

6.1 
Regular review of internal audit investigation log to confirm that 

sanctions applied are consistent and in accordance with policy  
1   

6.2 Prosecution\Penalties for external fraud e.g. Housing Tenancy   5 

 DEFINING SUCCESS    

7.1 2023-24 Counter Fraud Plan – prepare and complete   2   

7.2 Annual Report to Audit & Governance Committee – production 1   

 
TOTAL ALLOCATED TIME 75   

 
TOTAL ALLOCATED DAYS 2022/23 160 100 125 

 
GRAND TOTAL ANTI-FRAUD & CORRUPTION DAYS 385 

 
 

 

111



 

 

KEY FRAUD RISK AREAS (FROM CORPORATE FRAUD RISK REGISTER) 
 

Area of Fraud Risk 
Register 
Score 

Internal Audit (IA) work coverage  
SVPP \ IA 

Corporate Fraud 

IA Resource 

Required 
22/23 

Cheque / BACS / CHAPS 

 Payments to false companies/individuals 
by staff 

 Cheques intercepted and amended 

 Fraudulent request to change 
creditor\individual bank account details 

 Fraudulent Treasury Management 
payments 

12 

 Annual Creditors audits. 19/20 duplicate payments review 
& included in NFI biannual exercise (last Jan 2021). 

 Annual Creditors audits 

 Annual Creditor\Payroll audits 
 

 Periodic Treasury Management audits 

- 
- 

 

Procurement – Contracts 

 Various including inappropriate selection, 
inappropriate payments during contract  

12 BCP audit review 2021/22 - - 

Cybercrime 12 BCP cyber security audit review 2021/22 - - 

Grant Award 12 

Includes COVID grant awards – Internal Audit assurance work 
carried out 2020/21/22 

Previous legacy Council work on general grants 

- 
Review BCP 
general grant 
arrangements 

Income 9 2019/20 BCP cash income checks carried out  - - 

Council Tax Discounts 

 Inappropriately claimed or awarded 
9 

Annual Council Tax audits 

2020/21 SPD NFI ‘premium’ data matching service used. 

SVPP respond to 
concerns and 

review NFI SPD 
matches 

Oversee  
outcomes of NFI 

exercise 

Financial Assessments 9 Annual Key Financial System reviews  - - 

Residential Care & Homecare Payments 

 Payments made inappropriately including 
to deceased or ‘ghost’ clients 

9 Annual Key Financial System reviews   - - 

Direct Payments  

 Adults 

 Children’s 

9 

 

 BCP audit review 2021/22 

 2019/20 (Family & Inclusion main) 

- - 

Business Rates Fraud 9 
Annual NDR Key Financial System audits  

2019/20 Small Business Relief data matching work 
SVPP core service - 

Housing (applications and tenancy) 9 BCP Planned 2021/22 – C/FWD to 2022/23 
IA provide checks 

on applications 
Conduct data 

matching work 

Right to buy fraud 9 Legacy BoP 2016/17/18 
IA provide checks 

on applications 
Review BCP 
arrangements 

112



 

 

Area of Fraud Risk 
Register 
Score 

Internal Audit (IA) work coverage  
SVPP \ IA 

Corporate Fraud 

IA Resource 
Required 

22/23 

Pre-Employment (Recruitment) 9 BCP audit review 2021/22 - - 

Planning Applications 9 BCP audit review 2020/21 - - 

Schools (various including payments\income) 9 Ongoing school audits  - - 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 9 Annual Housing Benefit audit SVPP core service - 

Theft of Assets 6 Asset Management Key Assurance Function service reviews - - 

Blue Badges 6 BCP audit review 2021/22 
Corporate fraud 
officer support 

- 

Procurement – Credit Cards 6 
BCP Counter Fraud Review 2020/21 + BCP audit review 
2021/22 

- - 

False Insurance Claims 6 BCP Insurance audit review 2020/21   - - 

Concessionary Travel 6 BCP audit review 2020/21 - - 

Employee False Claims 4 
BCP Counter Fraud Review 2020/21 

Payroll Key Financial System audits 
- - 

Schools Admissions 4 Legacy BoP 2016/17/18. - - 

Licences 4 Legacy BoP 2017/18  - - 

Debt Collection – inappropriate write off 4 Annual Key Financial System Audits  - - 

Serious and Organised Crime 4 BCP audit review 2021/22 - - 

Local Welfare Assistance Fund (Crisis Payments) 2 BCP audit 2020/21  - - 

Recourse to Public Funds 2 BCP audit review 2019/20  - - 

General – Identity Fraud tba None - 
Review BCP 

arrangements 

Procurement – Petty Cash - BCP 2019/20 – NOTE now obsolete - - 

Policy Compliance 

 Money Laundering 

 Bribery & Corruption 

 Criminal Finances Act 

 Declarations of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and 
Investigatory Powers Act 

- 
Annual review of Policies in place for BCP 

BCP Declaration of Interests audit review 2020/21  
- 

Review BCP 
arrangements for 

Money Laundering 
and Criminal 
Finances Act 

Requirements and 
Member Declaration 

of Interests 

 

113



T
his page is intentionally left blank

114



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Forward Plan for the 2022/23 Municipal Year 

Meeting date  14 April 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report sets out the reports to be considered by the Audit & 
Governance Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year in order to 
enable it to fulfil its terms of reference. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Audit & Governance Committee approves the forward plan 
set out at Appendix A. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure that Audit & Governance Committee are fully informed of 
the reports to be considered during 2022/23. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard  

Head of Audit & Management Assurance  

01202 128784  

 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Recommendation Decision  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. Good practice suggests that a forward plan should be agreed which sets out the 
reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance Committee over the next 12 
months. 

The Forward Plan 

2. The Forward Plan set out at Appendix A has been developed through discussion 
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee, the S151 
Officer, and the Council’s External Auditors. The plan sets out proposals for the 
forward management of reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance 
Committee in order to enable it to fulfil its terms of reference. 

115

Agenda Item 10

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


3. The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the plan does not preclude 
extraordinary items being brought before the Committee in consultation with the 
Chair and Vice Chair as necessary and appropriate, thus ensuring that Audit & 
Governance Committee business is consistent with the terms of reference. 

4. The Chairman regularly asks committee members for any topics requiring this 
Committee’s consideration within its terms of reference and can be added at any 
time in the year or as they arise. These topics are generally shown in the 
‘Presentations’ section of the Forward Plan, Appendix A. The presentations are 
made available to the public with the meeting minutes.  

Options Appraisal 

5. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

Summary of financial implications 

6. There are no direct financial implications from this report.   

Summary of legal implications 

7. There are no direct legal implications from this report. 

Summary of human resources implications 

8. There are no direct human resource implications from this report.   

Summary of sustainability impact 

9. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.   

Summary of public health implications 

10. There are no public health implications from this report.  

Summary of equality implications 

11. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

12. Development and agreement of the Forward Plan by the Audit & Governance 
Committee enables it to fulfil its terms of reference.  

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

Appendix A – Audit & Governance Committee - Forward Plan 2022/23   

116



   APPENDIX A    
 

 

Audit & Governance Committee – Forward Plan 2022/23 
 
 

 

 

REPORT 

9 
JUN 
2022 
(extra) 

28 
JUL 
2022 

8 
SEP 
2022 
(extra) 

27 
OCT 
2022 

1 
DEC 
2022 
(extra) 

12 
JAN 
2023 

16 
Feb 
2023 
(extra)  

16 
MAR 
2023  

ANNUAL REPORTS         

Statement of Accounts 2020/21 (0 2021/22)    0    

Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 and 

Annual Review of Local Code of Governance (1 

update on Action Plan only)  



 

 

 

 

1 

  

Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Opinion Report 
2021/22 


 

 
 

 
 

  

Annual Breaches & approved Waivers of 

Financial Regulations Report 2021/22 


  

 
 

 
 

  

Annual Review of Declarations of Interests, Gifts 
& Hospitality by Officers 2021/22 


 

 
 

 
 

  

Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
and Investigatory Powers Act Annual Report 

2021/22 



 

 
 

 
 

  

Annual Report of Internal Audit Counter Fraud 
Work and Whistleblowing Referrals 2021/22  

 
 


 

 
 

  

Emergency Planning & Business Continuity 
Update 

 
 


 

 
 

  

Health & Safety and Fire Safety Update         

Treasury Management Strategy 

Refresh/Approval for next financial year 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Assurance Framework & Internal Audit Planning 
Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Information Governance Update         
Internal Audit Charter & Audit Plan for next 

financial year 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

ANNUAL OR PERIODIC POLICY UPDATES         

43. Annual evolution of Policies for 2023/24: 

44. - Whistleblowing 

45. - Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

46. - Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality  

47. - Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) 
and Investigatory Powers Act (IPA)    

 

 

 

 

 

   

Financial Regulations - annual evolution for 
2023/24.   

 
 

 
 

 
   

QUARTERLY / HALF YEARLY REPORTS         

Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update          

Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register 

Update 


 


 

 
 

 
 

Forward Plan (refresh)         

Treasury Management Monitoring Report          

AD HOC / OTHER REPORTS         

Constitution Review        

Insurance Arrangements Review        

Risk Management Arrangements Review        

48. PRESENTATIONS (rather than formal reports)        

Presentations to be agreed during the year 49.   50.  51.  52.  53.  54.  55.  

EXTERNAL AUDITS REPORTS         

External Auditor – Audit Plan 2021/22 (2 2022/23)         2 

External Auditor – Audit Findings Report 
2020/21 (3 2021/22) 

 
 

 
 

3 
 

 

External Auditor – Auditors Annual Report 
2020/21(4 2021/22) 

  
 

 
 




4

External Auditor – Audit Progress & Sector 

Update 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

117



This page is intentionally left blank

118


	Agenda
	7 Information Governance Update
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	TABLE 1 FOI-EIR Requests 2019-20 to 2021-22
	ALL FOI / EIR REQUESTS 2019/20 to 2021/22*

	TABLE 2 - FOI-EIR Exemptions used Apr 2019 - Dec 2021
	Number of FOI exemptions & EIR Exceptions used 2019/20 to 2021/22*

	TABLE 3 FOI-EIR Response Rates 2019-20 to 2021-22
	TABLE 4 ICO complaints and reviews
	TABLE 5 DPA SAR Requests 2019-20 to 2021-22
	TABLE 6 Disclosure Requests 2019-20 to 2021-22
	(a) – DISCLOSURE REQUESTS BY YEAR 2019/20 – 2021/22*
	(b) - DISCLOSURE BY REQUESTOR 2019/20– 2021/22*

	TABLE 7 - Information Governance training take up Apr 2019 - Dec 2021
	Number of online IG training sessions completed for mandatory courses 2019/20 to 2021/22*


	Appendix C

	8 Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update
	9 Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update (including Audit Charter and Audit Plan for 2022/23)
	Appendix A - Internal Audit Charter 2022/23
	Appendix B - Core Audit Plan 2022-23
	Core Plan

	Appendix C - Audits Planned for Quarter 1
	Appendix D - Anti-Fraud & Corruption Work Plan 2022/23

	10 Forward Plan for the 2022/23 Municipal Year
	Appendix A - A&G Committee - Forward Plan 2022/23


